1.

1.

1.

1.

1.

1.

y
H i

A J

County C

Constitution

Introduction to How the Council Works

e The County Council members, officers and
citizens’ rights

e The County Council and how decisions are
made (including principles of decision
making, Cabinet Decisions, definition of
Key Decisions, definition of Scrutiny)

The Constitution

e Role, Purpose and Interpretation of the
Constitution

e Review of the Constitution

e Suspension of the Constitution

e Publication of the Constitution

Members of the County Council

e Composition, eligibility, election and terms
of councillors

e Roles, functions, rights and responsibilities
of all councillors

e Members Code of Conduct

e Guidance on Member/Officer Relations

e Members’ Allowances Scheme

Citizens and the Council

e Citizen’s Rights including complaints
e Petitions Scheme

Full Council
e Purpose and Functions of Full Council

(including Local Choice Functions)
e Council Meetings (Including chairing

meetings)
e Budget and Policy Framework Procedure
Rules
Cabinet

e Executive Arrangements

ncil

| \

(Pages 1 -4)

(Pages 5 - 8)

(Pages 9 - 38)

(Pages 39 - 46)

(Pages 47 - 56)

(Pages 57 - 98)

Last Amended 23 July 2019



1.

1.

1.

1.

Appointment and terms of office of Leader
of the Council, Deputy Leader of the
Council and Cabinet Members

Role of Cabinet, Cabinet Decisions and
Cabinet Member Decisions

Procedure at Cabinet Meetings (including
Conflict of Interest etc)

Consultation (including Boards)

Cabinet Member Responsibilities (Including
General Delegations)

Local Choice Functions which are Cabinet
Responsibilities

Property Sub - Committee

Terms of Reference for Boards and
Cabinet Sub-Committees

The Shadow Cabinet

Select Committees

Other

General Role and Function of Select
Committees

Terms of Reference

Membership and Cooption

Meetings of Select Committees

Work Programme and Budget

Cabinet Member Accountability, Officers
Giving Account, Attendance by others
Policy Advisory Groups

Policy Review, Scrutiny Reports, Rights of
Members to Documents

Callin

Committees

Planning Committee

Audit and Standards Committee
Pensions Committee

Charities and Trust Committee

All Party Working Groups

Role and Purpose of All Party Member
Groups

Membership

Meetings

Agenda and Work Programmes
Relationship between the All Party Working
Groups and Select Committees

Joint Arrangements

(Pages 99 - 110)

(Pages 111 - 124)

(Pages 125 - 126)

(Pages 127 - 138)



1.

1.

1.

1.

Joint arrangements — General principles
Terms of Reference for  existing
arrangements.

Officers

Management Structure
Statutory Officers
Conduct, Employment, Exercise of
Delegated Powers and Finance, Legal and
Contract matters
Scheme of Delegation
Local Code of Conduct for Officers
Whistle blowing Policy

e Whistleblowing Policy -Contact

Officers List

Anti-Fraud, Bribery and Theft Policy
Officer Employment Rules

Procedural Standing Orders

Access to Information Procedure Rules

Financial Procedure Rules

Financial Regulations
Procurement Rules (including Contract
Standing Orders)

(Pages 139 - 236)

(Pages 237 - 252)
(Pages 253 - 262)

(Pages 263 - 334)






11

1.2

1.3

1.4

2.1

2.2

SECTION 1

INTRODUCTION TO HOW THE COUNTY COUNCIL WORKS

The County Council

The County Council is composed of 62 councillors elected every four years.
Councillors are democratically accountable to the residents of their electoral
division. The overriding duty of councillors is to the whole community, but they
have a special duty to their constituents, including those who did not vote for them.
Councillors have to agree to follow a code of conduct to ensure high standards in
the way they undertake their duties. The Audit and Standards Committee trains
and advises them on the code of conduct.

All councillors meet together as the County Council. Meetings of the County
Council are normally open to the public. Here councillors decide the County
Council’s overall policies and set the budget each year. The County Council is also
responsible for electing the Leader of the Council and for appointing Committees,
some of which are responsible for overseeing and reviewing the decisions of the
Cabinet, while others have responsibilities for taking decisions about specific areas.
The Leader of the Council appoints the members of the Cabinet.

How decisions are made

Different parts of the Council are responsible for particular types of decisions and
decisions relating to particular areas or functions. A list of the responsibilities of
each body or individual can be found in the relevant section of the constitution.

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following
principles:

(a) due regard to all relevant and material considerations and without regard to
any irrelevant considerations;

(b) where appropriate, the realistic evaluation of alternatives;

(c) proportionality (ie the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
(d) due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

(e) respect for human rights and equalities;

() a presumption in favour of openness;

(g) clarity of aims and desired outcomes; and

(h) reasons being given for the decision.

Page 1



2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

4.2

5.1

6.1

The Council, a Committee or Panel, a councillor or an officer acting as a tribunal or
in a quasi judicial manner or determining/considering (other than for the purposes
of giving advice) the civil rights and obligations or the criminal responsibility of any
person will follow a proper procedure which accords with the requirements of
natural justice and the right to a fair trial contained in Article 6 of the European
Convention on Human Rights.

Decision making by the Cabinet

The Cabinet is the part of the County Council which is responsible for most day-to-
day decisions. The Cabinet comprises the Leader of the County Council and up to
nine councillors who meet together to take decisions. Meetings of the Cabinet are
generally open for the public to attend, except where personal or confidential
matters are being discussed.

The Cabinet is responsible for taking ‘Key Decisions’ which are decisions which are
termed significant, either in financial terms or in its effects on communities living or
working in an area comprising two or more electoral divisions in the County area.

The Cabinet has to make decisions which are in line with the Council’s overall
policies and budget. If it wishes to make a decision which is outside the budget or
policy framework, this must be referred to the Council as a whole to decide.

In some instances individual Cabinet Members may have delegated powers to take
decisions on behalf of the Cabinet.

How decisions are scrutinised

There are four Select Committees who support the work of the Cabinet and the
Council as a whole. Their overview and scrutiny of both planned and taken
decisions leads to reports and recommendations which advise the Cabinet and the
Council as a whole on its policies, budget and service delivery. Select Committees
monitor the decisions of the Cabinet and may be consulted on forthcoming
decisions and the development of policy.

Members of the Council who are not on the Cabinet can ‘call-in’ a decision which
has been made by the Cabinet but not yet implemented. If a matter is ‘called-in" it
will be considered by the Corporate Review Committee and Members of the
relevant Select Committee may be invited to the meeting when the ‘call-in' is
considered. They may recommend that the Cabinet reconsider the decision or in
some circumstances refer it to the Council.

The Council’s Staff

The County Council has people working for it (called ‘officers’) to give advice,
implement decisions and manage the day-to-day delivery of its services. Some
officers have a specific duty to ensure that the Council acts within the law and uses
its resources wisely. A code of practice governs the relationships between officers
and members of the County Council.

Citizens’ Rights

Citizens have a number of rights in their dealings with the Council. Section 4 of this
Constitution sets out Citizens’ rights t?_,g@'gc'ﬁ)ate in Council’s democratic



6.2

6.3

arrangements by voting, attending meetings and accessing reports and background
papers. It also sets out Citizens’ right to complain about the Council’s actions or
proposals.

Some of these are legal rights, whilst others depend on the County Council’'s own
processes. The Local Citizens’ Advice Bureau can advise on individual legal rights.
Where members of the public use specific Council services, for example as a
parent of a school pupil, they may have additional rights. These are not covered in
this Constitution.

The County Council welcomes patrticipation by its citizens in its work. For further

information on your rights as a citizen, please contact the Director of Corporate
Services.

Page 3






11

1.2

2.1

SECTION 2

THE COUNTY COUNCIL’S CONSTITUTION — ROLE AND PURPOSE

What is the Constitution?

The Staffordshire County Council Constitution sets out how the Council operates,
how decisions are made and the procedures which are followed to ensure that
these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people. Some of these
processes are required by the law, while others are a matter for the Council to
choose.

The Constitution is divided into Sections which explain how the Council makes its
decisions by outlining how the different parts of the Council work and the basic
rules governing the Council’s business. These are:

e Members of the County Council (Section 3)
e Citizens and the County Council (Section 4)
e The County Council (Section 5)
e The Council’'s Cabinet (Section 6)
e Overview and scrutiny of decisions (Section 7)
e Other Committees (Section 8)
e Joint Arrangements (Section 9)
e Officers (Section 10)
e Procedural Standing Orders (Section 11)
e Access to Information Rules (Section 12)
e Financial Regulations (Section 13)

Purpose and Interpretation of the Constitution

The purpose of the Constitution is to:

(1) enable the County Council in partnership with citizens, businesses and other
organisations, to provide broad leadership to and support for the
communities of Staffordshire to improve their economic social and
environmental well-being;

(i) support the involvement of citizens in the process of local authority decision-
making;

(i) help councillors represent their constituents more effectively;
(iv)  enable decisions to be taken efficiently and effectively;

(V) create a rigorous means by which decision-makers can be held to public
account;

(vi)  ensure that no one will review or scrutinise a decision in which they have
been directly involved;

Page 5



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

(vii)  ensure that those responsible for decision making are clearly identifiable to
local people and that they explain the reasons for decisions; and

(viii) provide a means of improving the delivery of services to the community to
meet the County Council’s vision, as expressed in the policy themes on
which the Council’s Corporate Strategy is based.

Where the Constitution permits the Council to choose between different courses of
action, the Council will always choose that option which it thinks is closest to the
purposes stated above.

The ruling of the Chairman of the County Council on the construction or application
of this Constitution or on any proceedings of the Council shall not be challenged at
any meeting of the Council. Such interpretation will have regard to the purposes of
this Constitution above.

Review of the Constitution

The Audit and Standards Committee will review the operation of the Constitution to
ensure that the aims and principles of the Constitution are given full effect. Where
practicable, proposal for changes to the Constitution will be reported for
consideration by the Audit and Standards Committee prior to consideration by Full
Council.

The Chief Executive and the Director of Corporate Services as Monitoring Officer
will monitor and report to the Audit and Standards Committee from time to time on
the Constitution adopted by the Council and will make recommendations for ways
in which it could be amended in order better to achieve the purposes set out above.

The Director of Corporate Services will have the authority to make minor and
consequential amendments to the constitution to keep it up to date with legislative
requirements and/or to keep the whole constitution in line with Council decisions
made from time to time.

In the event of any proposals for a change in Executive arrangements from a
Leader and Cabinet form of Executive to another form of Executive or vice versa,
the Council will take reasonable steps to consult local electors and other interested
persons in the area when drawing up proposals.

No change to any provision of this Constitution or to any sub-delegation scheme
having effect under it shall, unless otherwise specified, invalidate any previous
decision or action made or taken under such provisions.

Unless specified by a provision of the Constitution, any decision made by or on
behalf of the County Council (including any plan, budget, policy or strategy
approved by or on behalf of the County Council) prior to the coming into effect of
the Constitution or the making of any change to it shall remain in force until it is
amended varied or replaced.

Page 6



4.1

5.1

5.2

Suspension of the Constitution

Any suspension of any part of the Constitution, in particular, but not exclusively, the
Procedure Rules, and Finance and Contract Procedure Rules, shall only take place
in accordance with the provisions in the specific rules themselves.

Publication of the Constitution

The Director of Corporate Services will give a printed copy of this Constitution to
each member of the authority upon delivery of that individual’s declaration of
acceptance of office on the member first being elected to the Council.

The Director of Corporate Services will maintain and publish an up to date version
of the Constitution on the Council’s website and ensure that copies are widely
available for inspection at Council offices, libraries and other appropriate locations,
and can be purchased by members of the local press and the public on payment of
a reasonable fee.

Page 7






11

1.2

1.3

2.1

3.1

3.2

SECTION 3
MEMBERS OF THE COUNTY COUNCIL
Composition and eligibility
The Council will be made up of Members, otherwise known as County
Councillors, elected by the voters of each electoral division in accordance with

legislation. (Currently 62 Members)

Only registered voters of the county area or those living or working there will be
eligible to hold the office of County Councillor.

A list of the current County Councillors along with their address and contact
details is maintained on the County Council website at
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgMemberindex.aspx?bcr=1.

Election and terms of councillors

The regular election of councillors will be held on the first Thursday in May
every four years beginning in 2001. The terms of office of councillors will start
on the fourth day after being elected and will finish on the fourth day after the
date of the next regular election.

Roles, functions, rights and responsibilities of all councillors
All councillors will:

(i) collectively be the ultimate policy-makers and carry out strategic and
corporate management functions;

(i)  contribute to the good governance of the area and encourage community
participation and citizen involvement in decision making;

(iif) effectively represent the interests of their electoral divisions and of
individual constituents and bring their views into the Council’s decision-
making process;

(iv) respond to constituents’ enquiries and representations, fairly and
impartially;

(v) participate in the governance and management of the Council;
(vi) be available to represent the Council on other bodies; and

(vii) maintain the highest standards of conduct and ethics, observing the
provisions of the constitution, especially the Members Code of Conduct
attached to this section.

The County Council has agreed role descriptions for Councillors and the
various office holders in the County Council and will keep these under review.
Councillors are also encouraged to prepare and publish an accountability
statement each year. Page 9


http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1

3.3

3.5

3.5

4.1

Councillors will have such rights of access to such documents and information
as are necessary for the proper discharge of their functions and in accordance
with the law.

Councillors will not make public information which is confidential or exempt
without the consent of the Council or divulge information given in confidence to
anyone other than a councillor or officer entitled to know it.

For these purposes, “confidential” and “exempt” information are defined in the
access to Information Rules in Section 13 of this Constitution.

Allowances

Councillors will be entitled to receive allowances in accordance with the
Members’ Allowances Scheme set out in this Constitution.

People Helping People Fund

The County Council operates a People Helping People Fund under which
Councillors are able to recommend expenditure of up to a prescribed amount
each year on projects that relate to children and families or health and care and
are aimed at keeping people independent, healthy and supported within the
places they live. Details and key criteria of the Scheme are set out on the
County Council’s website https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Your-council-and-
democracy/People-Helping-People-Fund/Home.aspx

Page 10


https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Your-council-and-democracy/People-Helping-People-Fund/Home.aspx
https://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/Your-council-and-democracy/People-Helping-People-Fund/Home.aspx

STAFFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
MEMBERS’ CODE OF CONDUCT
Principles of the Code

As a member or co-opted member of Staffordshire County Council | have
responsibility to represent the community and work constructively with our
staff and partner organisations to secure better social, economic and
environmental outcomes for all.

In accordance with the Localism Act provisions, when acting in this capacity |
am committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent with the following
principles to achieve best value for our residents and maintain public
confidence in this authority.

SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the
public interest. They should not do so in order to gain financial or other
material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends.

INTEGRITY: Holders of public office should not place themselves under any
financial or other obligation to outside individuals or organisations that might
seek to influence them in the performance of their official duties.

OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards
and benefits, holders of public office should make choices on merit.

ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for their
decisions and actions to the public and must submit themselves to whatever
scrutiny is appropriate to their office.

OPENNESS: Holders of public office should be as open as possible about all
the decisions and actions that they take. They should give reasons for their
decisions and restrict information only when the wider public interest clearly
demands.

HONESTY: Holders of public office have a duty to declare any private
interests relating to their public duties and to take steps to resolve any
conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest.

LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should promote and support these
principles by leadership and example.

General Undertaking
When acting in my role of member of Staffordshire County Council my

conduct will in particular address the statutory principles of the code of
conduct by:

Page 11



Championing the needs of residents - the whole community and in a
special way your constituents, including those that did not vote for you,
and put their interests first.

Dealing with representations and enquiries from residents, members of
the community and visitors fairly, appropriately and impartially

Not allow other pressures, including the financial interest of myself or
others connected with me to deter me from pursuing constituents’
casework, the interest of Staffordshire County Council or the good
governance of the authority in a proper manner

Exercising independent judgement and not compromising my position by
placing myself under obligations to outside individuals or organisations
who might seek to influence the way | perform my duties as a member of
the authority

Listening to the interests of all parties, including relevant advice from
statutory and other professional officers, taking all relevant information
into consideration, remaining objective and making decisions on merit

Being accountable for my decisions and co-operate when scrutinised
internally and externally, including by local residents

Contributing to making the authority’s decision making processes as
open and transparent as possible to enable residents to understand the
reasoning behind those decisions and to be informed when holding me
and other members to account but restricting access to information when
the wider public interest or the law requires it (Being aware of the
potential for information passed through social networking media to be
distributed much more widely than intended by the author)

Behaving in accordance with all the authority’s legal obligations,
alongside any requirements within the authority’s policies, protocols and
procedures, including with regard to confidentiality and on the use of the
authority’s resources

Valuing colleagues and staff and engage with them in an appropriate
manner and one that underpins the mutual respect that is essential to
good local government

Always treating people with respect, including those organisations and
members of the public | engage with and those | work alongside

Providing leadership through behaving in accordance with these

principles when championing the interest of the community and other
organisations as well as within the authority

Page 12



Registration and Disclosure of Interests

1. The interests which you are required to register with the County Council’s
Monitoring Officer (Director of Corporate Services) are called Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests and are defined in section 5 below.

2. Any such interest must be registered within 28 days of the adoption of this
Code (19™ July 2012) or within 28 days of being elected (or re-elected) or
appointed (or re-appointed), whichever is relevant.

3. Allinterests notified to the Monitoring Officer (with the exception of such
interests defined in paragraph 6 below) will be included in the register of
interests

4. A copy of the register of interests will be available for public inspection and
will be published on the County Council’s website.

5. A ‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner,
ie your spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as
husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil
partners, (but only where you are aware that your partner has the interest)
within the following descriptions:

SUBJECT DESCRIPTION

Employment, office, trade, Any employment, office, trade, profession or
profession or vocation vocation carried on for profit or gain.
Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other

financial benefit (other than from Staffordshire
County Council) made or provided within the
relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by you or your partner in connection
with you carrying out duties as a member or
towards your election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial benefit
from a trade union within the meaning of the
Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts Any contract which is made between you or
your partner (or a body in which you or your
partner has a beneficial interest) and
Staffordshire County Council-

(a) under which goods or services are to
be provided or works are to be
executed;

and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Page 13




Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within
the area of Staffordshire County Council

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to
occupy land in the area of Staffordshire
County Council for a month or longer

Corporate Tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)

(a) the landlord is Staffordshire County
Council

and

(b) the tenant is a body in which you or
your partner has a beneficial interest

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body
where-

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a
place of business or land in the area of
Staffordshire County Council; and

(b) either-

(1) the total nominal value of the
securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or

(i) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any
one class in which you or your
partner has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class

6. Where you consider that disclosure of the details of any Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest could lead you, or a person connected with you, being
subject to violence or intimidation if the interest is entered on the register,
then, if the Monitoring Officer agrees, copies of the register that are
available for public inspection and any published version of the register will
exclude details of the interest but may state that you have an interest the
details of which are withheld.

7. Where it becomes apparent to you at a meeting of the County Council (or
Committee, sub-Committee, Joint Committee or Joint Sub-Committee of
the County Council) that you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a
matter which is to be or is being considered at the meeting that is not
included on the register of interests then;

(i) you must disclose the interest to the meeting,
(ii) unless the interest is the subject of a pending notification, you must
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days.

Page 14




8. Where you are present at a meeting of the County Council (or Committee,
sub-Committee, Joint Committee or Joint Sub-Committee of the County
Council) and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter which
is to be or is being considered at the meeting then
(i) you may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting,

and
(i) you may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting,
unless you have a written dispensation from the County Council in respect
of either or both (i) or (ii) above.

9 The County Council’s Standing Orders require that if you have a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter under discussion at a meeting of
the County Council (or Committee, sub-Committee, Joint Committee or
Joint Sub-Committee of the County Council) you must notify the Chairman
that you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in the matter and the nature
of the interest, and leave the meeting room until consideration of the item in
guestion is concluded.

10.Section 34 of the Localism Act sets out a number of offences relating to
the notification and disclosure of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests,
participating in matters in which you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest
and knowingly or recklessly providing false or misleading information in
relation to your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests. All of these offences are
subject to criminal penalties which include a fine of up to £5000 and
disqualification from being a Councillor for up to 5 years.

Gifts and Hospitality

11.The acceptance, or offering of, gifts and hospitality by members is not
merely an administrative issue; it reflects directly upon the public
perception of members and of the authority and may have criminal offence
implications.

12.1t may be entirely appropriate to accept an offer, or to make one, but you
must give consideration to the appropriateness of your actions together
with how that action may be perceived by someone looking on.

13. A particular concern to bear in mind is that you should do nothing which
might be considered to place yourself — or others within the authority -
under any financial or other obligation to outside individuals or
organisations.

14.You should note that, in respect of both the giving and receiving of gifts
and hospitality, there are possible criminal offences under the Bribery Act
2010 with penalties including imprisonment of up to 10 years.

15.1f you receive, or refuse the offer of, any gifts or hospitality worth over £25

in connection with your role as a member of the County Council then you
will need to complete the relevant form:

Page 15



https://int.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/qiftshospitality/

16.Should you require it, advice and assistance is available from Member and
Democratic Services or the Monitoring Officer.

Planning Committee Members’ Guidance Protocol

17.1n addition to this Members’ Code of Conduct there is further guidance for
members of the Planning Committee. The aim of the Guidance Protocol is
to ensure that in the planning process there are no grounds for suggesting
that a decision of the Planning Committee has been unfair, biased, partial
or not well founded in any way.
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/committeesold/standards/com
plaining/complaints.aspx

Complaints

18.1f a member of the public is unhappy about the way that a member has
behaved, they may complain to the Monitoring Officer of Staffordshire
County Council.
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/committeesold/standards/com
plaining/complaints.aspx

Page 16


https://int.staffordshire.gov.uk/scc/giftshospitality/
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/committeesold/standards/complaining/complaints.aspx
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/committeesold/standards/complaining/complaints.aspx
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/committeesold/standards/complaining/complaints.aspx|
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/committeesold/standards/complaining/complaints.aspx|

11

1.2

2.1

GUIDANCE ON MEMBER/OFFICER RELATIONS
INTRODUCTION

Councillors and Officers both have important but distinct roles. The relationship
between them has to function effectively in order for them to be able to carry out
their respective roles. The purpose of this guidance is to offer advice to Councillors
and Officers on how to conduct that relationship in a way that allows both to do their
jobs and enhances the reputation of the County Council.

Although both councillors and officers depend upon one another to be able to do
their respective jobs, councillors, in particular, are reliant upon officers for
information and support. Because of this all officers need to be aware of their
responsibility when called upon to provide support and assistance to councillors to
enable them to do their job effectively. Whenever a councillor raises a question
with an officer a response must be given promptly. When promises are made to
Councillors they need to be kept.

THE ROLE OF COUNCILLORS

Councillors may have a number of complex roles including politician, policy maker,
representative, constituent advocate and Council/Committee worker. It is not the
role of a Councillor to involve themselves in the day to day management of Council
services.

o Councillor — in this capacity Councillors will usually belong to particular
groupings represented on the Council and will express political values and
support the policies of the group to which they belong.

o Policy Maker - Members may have personal, individual or collective
responsibility depending on their role for the Council and its activities. They set
the direction of the Council; are responsible for ensuring that adequate
management arrangements are in place; develop and allocate the Council’s
physical, financial and human resources and monitor the performance,
development, continuity and overall well-being of the Council.

o Division Member —in this capacity Councillors interpret and express the wishes
of the electorate, advocate on behalf of constituents and seek to account for
service priorities, allocation of resources and ultimate performance of the
Council. Councillors may also be appointed to outside bodies and the role can
vary from representing the views of the Council to acting according to individual
judgement.

o Members, collectively, therefore Need to:

o Determine vision and values and ensure staff commitment;

o Ensure standards are properly established and monitored;

o Link service and corporate objectives;

o Enable local people to resolve problems and issues faced by the
community;

Ensure community needs are fed into strategy formulation and service

provision;

o Develop and support community leadership.

o Cabinet Members and Leader of the Council - The Leader and Members of
the Cabinet have executive power to take decisions. Working closely with the
Corporate Management Team, they will develop the policy framework and
budget proposal for Council. The Leader and Cabinet are then responsible for

Page 17

O



implementing the approved policy framework by collectively and individually
making decisions in keeping with the Council’s scheme of delegation.

o Opposition Members - All Members should be given timely access to
information required in their role as Councillors and have the same rights and
obligations in their relationship with officers.

3. THE ROLE OF OFFICERS

3.1  Officers of the Council have the following main roles:

o Initiate policy proposals;

o Implement all Council policies;

o Manage the services for which the Council has given them responsibility. They
are accountable for the efficiency and effectiveness of those services and for
proper professional practice in discharging their responsibilities and taking
decisions, within agreed policy;

o Provide professional advice to the Council, its Committees and Members and
the public in respect of their service;

o Ensure that the Council acts in a lawful way.

4. RESPECT AND TRUST

4.1  The relationship between Councillors and Officers should be based on mutual
respect and trust. Officers should avoid criticising Councillors, and Councillors
should avoid criticising officers, in order to maintain that trust and respect.

4.2 In dealings between Councillors and Officers neither should seek to take unfair
advantage of their position. Councillors should not press employees to do things
that they are not empowered to do.

4.3  Officers must not press Councillors to make a decision in their favour, nor raise
personal matters to do with their job, nor make claims or allegations about other
employees. (The only exception to this rule is where the officer wishes to report
possible wrongdoing under the Council’s “Whistleblowing” procedure.)

4.4  Reports from officers should be in the name of the relevant Chief Officer. Reports
may be discussed with councillors, such as with the relevant Cabinet Portfolio
Holder or Chair of the relevant Committee, and the Councillors concerned may
make suggestions as to the contents of the report. However, the content remains
the responsibility of the Chief Officer and amendments can only be made by him or
her. (This does not apply to the recommendations to Cabinet or the front sheet to a
Cabinet report on which the Cabinet Member has the final say).

4.5  Officers must deal honestly with members and not attempt to mislead them.
Reports and all other communications with members must be clear concise and in
plain English.

Familiarity

4.6  Close personal familiarity between individual Councillors and Officer should be
avoided and the relationship maintained on a professional basis.

Page 18



4.7

4.8

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

The holders of office should, in public, always be addressed by their office such

as “Chairman”, “Vice-Chairman” etc. At formal meetings it would be usual for
officers and members to address each other by their surname and title.

In less formal environments, the use of first names as a means of address is
usually acceptable. However, some individual members and officers may feel
more comfortable with the more formal mode of address, and allowance should
be made for such individual preferences where known.

INFORMATION FOR COUNCILLORS

It is vital for Chief Officers and officers to keep councillors informed about the major
issues concerning the County Council. Just as importantly, councillors should be
informed about proposals that affect their electoral division before they are
announced publicly, and should be invited to attend County Council initiated events
within their electoral division.

Where an issue affecting a particular division is to be discussed by the Cabinet or a
Committee, Sub-Committee or Panel on which the local councillor does not serve,
the councillor will be invited to attend and may speak on it if he or she wishes to do
so. (This is of course subject to any overriding requirement of the Members Code
of Conduct).

Where councillor requests information, the fact of that request, and the information
supplied, may be brought to the attention of the Cabinet Member/Chair concerned
by the relevant Chief Officer.

Councillors requests for information must always be given high priority and a
response given within 2 working days.

Access to Papers and other County Council Information

Councillors have all the rights available to members of the public and may request
individual copies of any agendas of the Cabinet and of Committees, Sub-
Committees or Panels of which they are not members.

Additionally, if a councillor is able to demonstrate a "need to know" in his or her role
as a County Councillor, officers should provide the relevant information, including
exempt or confidential information, to that councillor.

Special care needs to be taken when a councillor has a significant personal or
business relationship with a constituent about whom he or she is seeking
information. In such circumstances councillors are advised to consider their Code
of Conduct and consult the Director of Corporate Services as necessary.

How can the Information be used?
Any County Council information provided to a member should only be used by the

member for the purpose for which it was provided. Confidential information must
remain confidential.

Page 19



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

POLITICAL ACTIVITY

Senior officers cannot be councillors or MPs, nor can they speak or write publicly as
private individuals on party political issues.

Officers are employed by the County Council as a whole and are responsible to the
Chief Executive and their respective Chief Officers rather than to individual
members of the Council.

Regular contact between senior officers and senior politicians on matters affecting
the County Council is essential.

County Council decisions can only be made in accordance with the Constitution.
(Decisions by party political groups do not constitute County Council decisions). All
information or advice needed to make a decision should be given to the Cabinet or
the relevant Committee, Sub-Committee or Panel.

Officer advice to party groups

It is possible that senior officers may be asked to attend a party group meeting
whether of the controlling party group or of a minority party group.

Any such request should be made or referred to the Chief Executive. If agreed it
will be on the basis that a similar arrangements will be made for the other groups
should they so request.

Officer attendance at political group meetings is voluntary.

Officers are entitled to have their political neutrality respected should they agree to
attend the group meeting, and to be treated in a fair and proper way. They must
not be placed in a position where they feel that their political impartiality or integrity
are put at risk, and should leave the meeting having given information on the issue
in question, and before the Group decide what view to take on it as a political

group.

Officers should not be expected to be present at meetings, or parts of meetings,
when matters of party business are to be discussed. Officers should be reminded
on each occasion that they should leave a meeting if they are to be asked to
comment on matters beyond the brief agreed in advance, or if they feel vulnerable
or that their integrity was being put in question.

Special care needs to be exercised whenever officers are involved in providing
information and advice to a party group meeting that includes persons who are not
members or co-opted members of the County Council. For reasons of
confidentiality, officers may not be able to provide the same level of information and
advice as they would to a “members-only” meeting.

Officers must respect the confidentiality of any party group discussions by not
relaying the content of any such discussion to another party group.

Page 20



6.12

6.13

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.1

8.2

Relationships between Officers and Portfolio Holders and Chairs

It is clearly important that there should be a close working relationship between
Portfolio Holders, the Chairs of Committees and the relevant Chief Officer and other
senior officers. However, such relationships should never be allowed to become so
close, or appear to be so close, as to impair the officers’ ability to deal impartially
with other members and other party groups.

Officers are accountable to their Chief Officer and must not go beyond the bounds
of whatever authority they have been given by their Chief Officer.

REDRESS

If a councillor feels that an officer has acted contrary to the spirit of this guidance
they should raise it with the Officer’s line manager or Chief Officer.

If an officer has similar concerns about a councillor, he or she should raise the
matter with their Chief Officer who may then raise the matter with the individual
member and/or Party Group Leader.

If councillors are having difficulty in obtaining information they need to carry out
their duties as a County Councillor, they should contact the Director of Corporate
Services.

SUMMARY
Officer Commitments to Councillors:

o We recognise that we are here to support you to do your job as a County
Councillor and will provide you with support and assistance when requested

o  We will show understanding for your respective roles, workloads and pressures

o We will treat you with respect and deal with you honestly

o  We will not use our relationship with you to advance our personal interests or to
influence decisions improperly

o  We will give your queries priority and answer them quickly (within 2 working
days)

o  We will ensure that local members are informed about our proposals for their
division before we announce them publicly

o If we make a promise to you we will deliver on it on time

o  We will make sure that all communications with you whether formal or informal
are clear, concise and in plain English.

Member Commitments to Officers:

We will provide political leadership and direction

We treat you with respect, dignity and courtesy

We will show understanding for your respective roles, workloads and pressures
We recognise that you must operate with political neutrality and will respect this
We will not take unfair advantage of our position as a Councillor

We will not subject you to bullying or undue pressure

When you give us information in confidence we will respect that confidentiality.

O O O O O O O

Page 21






11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

2.1

2.2

MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME

Contents

1. Introduction

2. Statutory requirements

3. How the allowances are determined

4. Different types of allowances

5. Basic allowance

6. Special responsibility allowance

7. Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the County Council allowances
8. Carers'/Dependants allowance

9. Subsistence allowance

10.  Travelling allowance

11. Meetings Allowance

12. Pensions

13.  Calculating the time allowed

14.  Submission and payment of claims

15.  Approved duties

16.  Tax, National Insurance, Sickness and Pensions

17.  What if a member does not wish to be paid allowances?
18. Members responsibilities

Introduction

The purpose of this Section is to give guidance on members’ entitlement to
allowances and expenses.

It is extremely important, both from the member’s personal point of view and for
the County Council, that the entitlements under the arrangements are clear and
transparent and that the possibility of erroneous claims is avoided.

Set out in Annex 1 is the formal County Council Scheme for the payment of
members' allowances.

This Scheme addresses various aspects of allowances payable to members. It
replaces all previous guidance issued by the County Council on the subject.

Members can obtain further guidance, if necessary, from the Director of
Corporate Services.

Statutory requirements

One provision in the Local Government Act 1972 remains in force relating to
County Councils:-

Sections 3 and 5 respectively authorise the payment of allowances to the
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the County Council.

The primary legislation under which the main allowances are now paid is Section 18

of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Sections 99 and 100 of the

Page 23



3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

5.1

5.2

5.3

Local Government Act 2000. The Local Authorities (Members' Allowances)
(England) Regulations 2003 issued under the Acts, prescribe the detailed controls
and require authorities to make a scheme covering the payment of certain
allowances to members.

How the allowances are determined

The County Council is required, by law, to pay a basic allowance the amount of
which is at the Council’s discretion. The County Council pays a basic allowance
which takes all aspects of the role of a member into account, other than special
responsibilities.

In the event that any Member holds more than one position for which a special
responsibility allowance is payable he shall be entitled to claim only one of those
allowances.

In respect of the payment of allowances covered by the previous paragraph the
County Council makes financial provision for these allowances within the estimates,
and reviews the allowances annually.

Different types of allowance
The allowances to which members may be entitled are listed below:-

basic allowance

special responsibility allowance

Chairman and Vice- Chairman allowances
carers'/dependants’ allowance
subsistence and travelling allowances
meetings allowance

Basic Allowance

An elected member is entitled to receive a basic allowance for each year from

1 April to 31 March. By law, the amount of basic allowance has to be the same for
each member during that period. A member who is not a member for the whole of
the financial year receives an allowance reduced proportionately as provided for in
the Scheme.

The County Council has decided that the annual basic allowance will be paid by 12
monthly instalments in arrears on the 28™ of each month.

In the year of a county council election the basic allowance for the month preceding
the election will be adjusted to cover the period ending on the fourth day after the
date of the election, this being the date of automatic retirement of councillors.

In the month of the election returning and newly elected members will then receive

their basic allowance pro-rata from the fifth day after the election to the end of the
month, in accordance with the Scheme already in force for that financial year.

Page 24



6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

8.1

9.1

Special Responsibility Allowance

The regulations permit the County Council to pay an allowance to certain
councillors who have special responsibilities which must be defined in the Scheme.
Those special responsibilities have to fall within certain categories defined in the
regulations.

The amounts paid to individual councillors can differ and the annual allowance is
reduced proportionately for any period during the year when a councillor does not
have special responsibilities.

The special responsibility allowance is paid by 12 monthly instalments in arrears on
the 28th of each month.

In the year of a county council election the special responsibility allowance will be
paid to returning members who will remain in that position until the annual council
meeting.

Special responsibility allowances will be pro-rata from the date of the annual
council meeting until the end of that month.

Chairman and Vice-Chairman Allowances

The allowances paid to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the County Council will
be increased annually in line with the recommendations made by the Independent
Remuneration Panel in respect of the increase in the basic allowance. The level of
allowances is shown in Schedule 3. The allowance is paid by 12 monthly
instalments in arrears on the 28" of each month.

Carers'/Dependants' Allowance

A member may claim an allowance of the actual hourly rate of care provision up to a
maximum of £15.57 per hour subject to the conditions below:-

e such payments may only be claimed and made in respect of children aged
16 years of age or under and/or other dependants where there is medical
or social work evidence that care is required (which should be submitted
to the Director of Corporate Services)

e allowances claimed and paid should be based on actual expenditure and
be accompanied by appropriate receipts

e allowances should not be payable to reimburse a member for payments
made to a member of the claimant’s household (i.e. a person usually
residing with a claimant)

Subsistence Allowance

A member (including a co-opted member and/or independent persons consulted as
part of the Council’'s Standards arrangements) is entitled to claim subsistence
allowance at the rates adopted by the County Council from time to time following
consideration of the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration Panel.
The current rates will be available on the Staffordshire Web and the Members’

Page 25



9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.7

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Intranet. In calculating the period of absence, reasonable time properly spent in
travelling to and from the meeting can be taken into account.

To be entitled to claim, members are required to certify that expenditure has
actually been incurred by them on subsistence and to claim only for that
expenditure up to the maximum amount allowed within the scheme.

There are occasions when members on approved duties need to take a main
meal that will be more expensive than the allowance permitted by the scheme
such as when attending venues in major cities or on trains. In such
circumstances, members can claim the reasonable cost of the meal taken.

Members are advised that all receipts for expenditure claimed for under the
scheme should be forwarded to Member and Democratic Services for retention
as proof of the claim.

There may be times when a member is required to be away overnight. If
accommodation is required then it can be arranged and paid for in advance
rather than the member incurring the expense and being reimbursed up to the
maximum in schedule 4.

Members may occasionally be required to make overseas visits on County Council
business in connection with one or other of the specific functions of the County
Council. In those circumstances subsistence costs can be reimbursed provided
they are reasonable.

The Director of Corporate Services will supply details of these allowances on
request.

Travelling allowance

A member is entitled to claim travelling allowance when expenditure is incurred on
travelling to attend an approved duty. The rates applicable to this allowance are
shown in schedule 5.

If members are using their own transport, the mileage claimed should be the
mileage as calculated by Internal Audit and recorded on the on-line expenses
claims system. The mileage claimed for must, if necessary, be properly justified, by
the member recording the starting point of his route, particularly if additional
mileage results from, for example, authorised visits to other sites on the route.

When it is financially advantageous to the County Council to do so, members
should use any transport arranged by officers to travel to meetings or site visits, etc.

It is possible for senior citizens to apply for and obtain the appropriate rail card
entitling them to concessionary fares at about half the full price. The County Council
has agreed, where "senior citizen" members are willing to use this privilege when
travelling on County Council business, to reimburse the member on the first
occasion used, the cost of the appropriate annual "senior citizen" rail card. The
actual cost of travel must be claimed when the facility is used.

Page 26



10.5

11.

111

12.

12.1

If the member uses public transport facilities then the following rates apply:-

Mode of travel

Maximum rates

Public transport
(within county)

Public transport
(outside county)

Standard rail fare or bus fares

Standard bus fares
Standard or first-class rail fare

Note 1

Members are asked to use their discretion in travelling
first-class. For example, an off-peak journey to London
might comfortably be managed in second-class. Travel
at peak times or needing confidential discussions on
route may suggest first-class as more appropriate.

Note 2

In the majority of cases member travel should be
booked through officers and in advance to ensure the
most advantageous rates. However, if urgency
dictates that a member purchases tickets
himself/herself, the receipt must be kept as proof for
reimbursement of actual costs incurred.

Taxi cab or cabs

() In cases of
urgency or where no
public transport is
reasonably available

(ii) In other cases

Actual fare and reasonable gratuity

Not exceeding the amount of the fare for travel by
appropriate public transport.

Note: In claims relating to hire of taxis or cabs,
members should indicate in writing, the circumstances
in which the expenditure was incurred; whether it was
incurred on grounds of urgency or because there were
no public facilities available.

Meetings Allowance

Appointed members (i.e. church and parent representatives on the Prosperous
Staffordshire Select Committee, or any Committee (whatever entitled), whose
functions include the education function), including a co-opted member and/or
independent persons consulted as part of the Council’s Standards arrangements,
are entitled to receive an annual Meetings Allowance of £607.01.

Pensions

As of 1 April 2014 new councillors will not be able to join the Local Government

Pension Scheme.

Page 27




13.

13.1

13.2

14.

14.1

15.

15.1

Calculating the time allowed

Reasonable travelling time is allowed for in calculating the period of absence for the
purpose of claiming subsistence allowances.

It occasionally happens that a member of the County Council moves home to
somewhere outside the county but remains as a councillor until the next County
Council election. Additionally, a member may be required to work outside the
county area on a temporary basis. In either of these circumstances the councillor is
requested to discuss the arrangements for travelling and subsistence claims with
his Group Leader and the Director of Corporate Services.

Submission and payment of claims

The County Council's scheme requires members to submit all claims for allowances
within two months of the end of the month to which the claim relates. Allowances
will be forfeit if not promptly claimed.

Approved Duties

Members may only claim for travel, subsistence and other allowances for
attendance at approved duties detailed below:

e Attendance at calendared meetings of the Council or any of its Executive,
Committees, Sub-Committees, Panels, Policy Advisory Groups etc

e Attendance at visits of inspection of sites and buildings arranged by any of the
bodies listed above (including children’s home)

e Attendance at meetings of any Outside Body or bodies to which the member
has been appointed at the Annual Council meeting

e The doing of anything as Chairman or Vice-Chairman of an outside body on
which the member is representing the Council.

e Authorised briefings for Committees/Panels/Executive meetings including all
meetings which are called by officers of the Council e.g. Pre Agenda
meetings.

e Authorised attendance at Conferences/Seminars.

e Duties undertaken by a Chairman/Executive Member in connection with
his/her role.

e Member Learning and Development Events, including Member Self Appraisal
meetings.

e Attendance at Staffordshire County Council Local Democracy Events
(including briefings)

Page 28



15.2

15.3

15.4

16.

16.1

e Attendance at any event that the County Council invites you to represent the
Council (but not to other events to which you may be invited as a county
councillor)

e Attendance at Parish Council meetings where you are representing the
County Council (but not where you are also a member of the Parish Council
or representing the Parish or District)

e Attendance at governor meetings at which you are representing the County
Council

e Invitations to any publicity events for schemes supported under the
Staffordshire Local Community Fund (including photo shoots, project
launches etc.)

The lists of outside bodies at which attendance is authorised by the County Council
are maintained by the Director of Corporate Services and are varied by him from
time to time after consultation with the Leader of the Council. Copies of the current
lists are available from the Director of Corporate Services.

If, as an appointee, or nominee, of the County Council, a member is asked to attend
a meeting of a body which is not on the County Council’s lists of authorised outside
bodies then travelling and subsistence allowances can only be claimed if
attendance has been approved beforehand for this purpose, which requires the use
of the Gold Form®. Such approvals must be given before attendance, otherwise
any allowance may not be payable.

If a member has been appointed to serve on an outside body for which attendance
is not regarded by the County Council as an approved duty for the purpose of the
payment of a member's allowance i.e. a body which is not included in the lists of
bodies referred to, or approved under 15.3 above, the member may, in some cases,
claim direct from the outside body concerned. In such cases the member may wish
to consult the body concerned.

Tax, national insurance, sickness and pensions

Basic and special responsibility allowances and the allowances paid to the
Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the County Council, are all liable to tax under
Schedule E. The allowances are paid by the Director of Finance and Resources
through a payroll which accounts for the tax on the PAYE system using a code
number issued by the Inland Revenue. In arriving at the code number it is a matter
for the individual member to agree direct with the Inland Revenue any allowances
which may help to reduce the tax liability. Subsistence claims for meetings in
County Buildings are also taxable. More detailed guidance on Inland Revenue
practice is available from the Director of Finance and Resources.

! Form (not part of the Constitution) to be signed by members for approval, in advance,
of a claim for travelling and subsistence allowances for attendance at an event,
function, meeting, outside body, conference or course which is not included in the
County Council’s approved lists of such events, functions, meetings, bodies,
conferences and courses.

Page 29



16.2

16.3

16.4

16.5

16.6

17.

17.1

18.

18.1

The same allowances are liable for National Insurance Class | contributions
notwithstanding that the member may be employed elsewhere or be self-employed,
unless:-

(@) the allowances due for the month are less than an amount prescribed
from time to time by the Inland Revenue, or

(b) the member reaches state pension age.

It is understood that the Benefits Agency may regard a member's basic and special
responsibility allowances as affecting, for social security purposes, that members'
entitlement to benefits. Claiming such allowance(s) could, therefore, affect a
member’s entitlement to benefits. In these circumstances, they should seek advice
from the Benefits Agency.

Under self-assessment regulations members are required to declare to the Inland
Revenue any taxable benefits they receive. Such benefits may arise if members
are deemed to have made a profit on mileage allowances, or if they are provided
with certain other facilities, for example with a computer, fax or telephone answering
machine at less than the full cost of provision. Any member who has received a
taxable benefit will be provided with a form P11E by the Director of Finance and
Resources, which will provide the information to be declared to the Inland Revenue,
and from whom further advice is available on request.

It is also possible that the payment of basic or special responsibility allowance(s) or
an allowance to the Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the County Council could affect
a member’s entitlement to an occupational pension or other financial arrangements
with previous employers.

Members who are unable to perform duties in that capacity as a result of sickness
in some circumstances may be eligible for statutory sick pay.

What if a member does not wish to be paid allowances?

A member who wishes to forego the right to be paid any of the allowances covered
by the County Council's scheme may do so in writing to the Director of Corporate
Services specifying which allowance(s) the member elects to forego and the date(s)
upon which the election is to become effective. Such an election may not be
revoked until the following 1 April.

Members’ responsibilities

It is the personal responsibility of members to ensure the accuracy of all
information entered on their claim forms relating to duties performed. Processes
arranged by the Director of Corporate Services are designed to ensure that all
claims relate to properly approved duties. The Director of Corporate Services will
ensure that the correct financial limits on the various allowances are complied
with. In all other respects members are accountable for the accuracy and
reasonableness of their claims.

Page 30



Annex 1 — The County Council’s Scheme for the Payment of Members’
Basic, Special Responsibility and other Allowances

The Staffordshire County Council, in exercise of the powers conferred by the
Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, hereby
make the following scheme.

This scheme, may be cited as the Staffordshire County Council Members'
Allowances scheme and shall have effect from 1 April 2007.

In this scheme:-

"councillor" means a member of the Staffordshire County Council who is a
councillor;

"year" means the 12 months ending with 31 March;

"County Council election” means an election for the appointment of all
councillors and does not include by-elections.

Basic allowance

Subject to paragraph 10, the total amount payable to each councillor for a

year is set out in Schedule 1. The basic allowance is payable, in a year in

which there is no County Council election, monthly in arrears on the 28" of
each month.

In the year of a county council election the basic allowance for the month preceding
the election will be adjusted to cover the period ending on the fourth day after the
date of the election, this being the date of automatic retirement of councillors.

Returning and newly elected members will then receive their basic allowance pro-
rata from the fifth day after the election to the end of the month, in accordance with
the Scheme already in force for that financial year.

Special responsibility allowance

For each year a special responsibility allowance shall be paid to those councillors
who hold special responsibilities in relation to the authority as fall within the
categories defined in paragraph 9 of the Regulations and as specified in the
Schedule to this scheme.

(@) The special responsibility allowances shall be payable:-

() Inayear in which there is no County Council election, by monthly
instalments in arrears on the 28th of each month, and

(i) Inthe year of a county council election the special responsibility allowance
will be paid to returning members who will remain in that position until the
annual council meeting. Special responsibility allowances will be paid
pro-rata from the date of the annual council meeting until the end of that
month.

Page 31



5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

(b) Subject to paragraph 10, the amount of each such allowance paid in the year
shall be the amount specified against that special responsibility in Schedule
2 to this scheme.

Carers/Dependants’ Allowance

An allowance of the actual hourly rate of care provision up to a maximum of
£15.57 per hour is payable to any member subject as follows:-

(i) such payments may only be claimed and made in respect of children aged
16 years of age or under and/or other dependants where there is medical or
social work evidence that care is required (such evidence to be submitted to
the Director of Corporate Services;

(i) allowances claimed and paid must be based on actual expenditure (up to the
maximum hourly rate) and be accompanied by appropriate receipts;

(i) allowances will not be paid to reimburse the claimant for payments made to
a member of the claimants’ household.

Subsistence Allowances

Subsistence allowances are payable to any member (including a co-opted
member and/or an appointed member (see paragraph 8 below) and/or an
independent persons consulted as part of the Council’s Standards arrangements)
at the rates set out in Schedule 4 subject to the member certifying that
expenditure has actually been incurred by the member on subsistence. The
actual expenditure may be more or less than the amount claimed.

The appropriate charge for all meals taken at premises owned or administered by
the County Council should be paid. However, if a meal is made available free of
charge from any source during the period to which the allowance relates, then the
appropriate amount must be deducted from the claim.

Where main meals (ie breakfast, lunch or dinner) are taken on trains during a
period for which there is an entitlement to a subsistence allowance, the
reasonable cost of the meals (including VAT) may be reimbursed in full, provided
the time on duty meets the conditions set out in Schedule 4. In such
circumstances, reimbursement of the reasonable cost of a meal would replace the
entitlement to the subsistence rate for the appropriate period.

Special allowances apply if a member is required to be away overnight or to
undertake duties abroad. The overnight allowances are set out in Schedule 4.
The Director of Corporate Services will, on request, supply details of the
allowances payable for duties undertaken abroad.

Travelling Allowance

Travelling allowances are payable to any member (including a co-opted member
and/or an appointed member (see paragraph 8 below) and/or independent

Page 32



8.1

8.2

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

11.

111

persons consulted as part of the Council’s Standards arrangements) in
accordance with the rates set out in Schedule 5.

Co-optees/Independent Persons Allowance

Subject to paragraph 10 below, an annual co-optees/independents allowance of
and £607.01 is payable to appointed members (ie church and parent
representatives on the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee or on any
Committee (whatever entitled) whose functions include the education function);
including a co-opted member and/or independent persons consulted as part of the
Council’s Standards arrangements. In either case such amount shall be paid
monthly in arrears on the 28th of each month.

The amount of co-optees allowance payable to any member who presides at a
meeting of a Scrutiny Panel where the functions of that Committee under Section
21 of the Local Government Act 2000 relate wholly or partly to any education
functions which are the responsibility of the Council’s Executive, shall not be less
than the minimum amount of any special responsibility allowance payable under
this scheme to a person who presides at meetings of any other of the Council’s
Committees or Sub-Committees.

Pensions

As of 1 April 2014 elected members are not eligible to join the Local Government
Pension Scheme.

Renunciation

A councillor may, by notice given to the Director of Corporate Services, elect to
forego any part of his or her entittement to an allowance under paragraphs 3 or 4
of this scheme.

An appointed member (see paragraph 8 above) or independent persons consulted
as part of the Council’'s Standards arrangements may, by notice given to the
Director of Corporate Services, elect to forego any part of his or her entitlement to
an allowance under paragraph 8 of this scheme.

Any such notice shall specify the effective date of renunciation and once given the
notice may not be revoked otherwise than with effect from 1 April in any year.

Part-year entitlement

The provisions of this paragraph shall have effect to regulate the entitlements of a
councillor to basic allowance, special responsibility allowance, and to the
entitlements of appointed members (see paragraph 8 above) and independent
persons consulted as part of the Council’s Standards arrangements, to a co-
optees allowance where, in the course of a year:-

(@) this scheme is amended; or

(b) that person becomes or ceases to be a councillor or an appointed or
independent member; or

Page 33



11.2

11.3

12.

12.1

(c) that councillor accepts or relinquishes a special responsibility for which a
special responsibility allowance is payable.

In relation to basic allowances and special responsibility allowances:-

(@) if an amendment to this scheme changes the amount to which a
councillor is entitled; or

(b) where the term of office of a councillor begins or ends otherwise than at
the beginning or end of a year; or

(c) where the special responsibilities of a councillor do not subsist
throughout the year; or

(d) where the scheme is amended as referred to in (a) above and the term
of office and/or the special responsibilities of the councillor do not subsist
throughout any part of the periods within the year distinguished by the
payment of different amounts for these allowances; then

the entitlement to the allowances shall be calculated by reference to the

proportion the number of days in each such period bears to the number of

days in that year.

In relation to the Co-optees/Independent Persons allowance:-

(a) if an amendment to this scheme changes the amount to which an
appointed member (see paragraph 8 above) or an independent person
consulted as part of the Council’s Standards arrangements is entitled; or

(b) where the term of office of an appointed member or an independent
person begins otherwise than at the beginning or end of a year; or

(c) where the scheme is amended as referred to in (a) above and the term
of office of the appointed or independent member does not subsist
throughout any parts of the periods within the year distinguished by the
payment of different amounts for this allowance, then

the entitlement to the allowance shall be calculated by reference to the

proportion the number of days in each such period bears to the number of

days in that year.

Administration

All claims for the payment of:

(@) dependants’ carers’ allowance;

(b) travelling and subsistence allowance; and

(c) co-optees’ allowance;

Page 34



must be submitted to the Director of Corporate Services for payment within two
months of the meeting taking place. Failure to comply with this timescale will
result in the allowance being forfeit.

12.2  Where a member of the County Council is also a member of another authority,
that member may not receive an allowance from more than one authority in
respect of the same duty.

12.3  The Director of Corporate Services shall maintain on behalf of the authority a
record of all payments made under this scheme which shall:-

(@) specify in relation to each payment the name of the recipient and the
amount and nature of the payment;

(b) be kept available, at all reasonable times, for inspection (free of charge)
by any local government elector for the area of the authority.

12.4 A person entitled to inspect the record may make a copy of any part of it.
13. Review of allowances

13.1 The allowances payable under this scheme shall be reviewed annually based
on the National Joint Council for Local Government Services annual review,
and any percentage increase applied automatically.

14. Suspension or partial suspension of a member

14.1 Where a member of the County Council is suspended or partially suspended
from his or her responsibilities or duties as such member in accordance with
Part Il of the Local Government Act 2000 or regulations made under that
Part, the part of all, or any, of the following allowances payable to him or her
in respect of the period for which he or she is suspended, or partially
suspended, may be withheld:-

Basic allowance

Special responsibility allowance

Travelling and subsistence allowances

Co-optees allowance

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the County Council allowances

15. Revision or revocation of the scheme
15.1  This scheme may only be amended or revoked in accordance with the provisions

of Section 10 of Part 3 of the Local Authorities (Members' Allowances) (England)
Regulations 2003.

Page 35



SCHEDULE 1

1 April 2019
To
31 March 2020
£

Basic Allowance £9,406.34

SCHEDULE 2

Special Responsibility Allowances

Special Responsibility Allowance 1 April 2019
To
31 March 2020
Leader of the Council £36,488.98
Deputy Leader of the Council £27,367.24
Cabinet Member (7) £18,244.49
Cabinet Support Members (4) £12,041.26
All Party Working Groups Cabinet Support Members (2) £6,020.63
(50% of Cabinet Support Member SRA)
Community Cabinet Support Members (8) (25% of Cabinet £3,010.32
Support Member SRA)
Leader of the Principal Opposition £18,244.49
Leader of the Minority Opposition (n/a)
Chair of Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee £7,636.47
Vice Chair of Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee £2,777.73
Chair of Corporate Review Committee £6,940.76
Vice Chair of Corporate Review Committee £2,429.88
Chair of Select Committee (3) £6,940.76
Vice Chair of Select Committee (3) £2,429.88
Chair of Planning Committee £6,940.76
Vice Chair of Planning Committee £2,429.88
Chair of Audit and Standards Committee £4,166.09
Vice Chair of Audit and Standards Committee £1,388.36
Chair of Pensions Committee £4,166.09
Vice Chair of Pensions Committee £1,388.36
Shadow Cabinet (Deputy Leader of the Principal Opposition) £6,203.23
Shadow Cabinet Members (no more than 3) the single SRA £1,824.62
may be subdivided to create SRAs for up to 3 Shadow
Cabinet Members
Chair of the Police and Crime Panel £2,777.73

Members may only claim one Special Responsibility Allowance

Note — These amounts follow the recommendations of the County Council’s

Independent Remuneration Panel.

Page 36




SCHEDULE 3

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the County Council

1 April 2018
To
31 March 2019
£
Chairman of the County Council £17,530.42
Vice-Chairman of the County Council £8,761.75

The allowance above is paid under Sections 3 and 5 of the Local Government
Act 1972 and does not affect members entitlement to a Special Responsibility

Allowance
SCHEDULE 4
Subsistence Allowances
Up to a maximum
of £
Breakfast
A duty of four hours — three of which should be before 11 am £5
Lunch
A duty of four hours including 12 noon to 2 pm £7
Tea
A duty of four hours including 3 pm to 6 pm £3
Dinner
A duty of four hours ending after 7 pm £12
Overnight
London allowance for overnight accommodation £92
All other for overnight accommodation £80
£
Overseas allowance per day £10.89

SCHEDULE 5

Mileage Allowances — Cars, Motorcycles and Bicycles

Rate per mile

All motor cars including electric and hybrid vehicles 45 p (from 1
September 2014)

All motorcycles 24 p

Bicycle allowance 20 p

Passenger rate

5p per passenger

Page 37







1.

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

SECTION 4

CITIZENS AND THE COUNTY COUNCIL

Citizens’ rights

Citizens have a number of rights under this Constitution. These rights set
out the ways in which Citizens can participate in the County Council's
decision making arrangements.

A Summary of Citizens rights is given below and they are covered in more
detail in the relevant parts of Procedural Standing Orders in Section 11 and
the Access to Information Rules in Section 13.

Voting and petitions

Citizens on the electoral roll for the County area have the right to vote in any
election or referendum organised by the County Council. They may also
sign a petition to request a referendum for an elected mayor form of
Constitution. If the number of signatures on the petition reaches the
prescribed number (currently 5% of the Electoral Roll), the County Council
will hold a referendum.

Citizens also have a right to submit or sign petitions to the County Council
including electronic petitions which can be submitted via
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgEPetitionListDisplay.aspx
?bcr=1. Petitions submitted to the County Council will be dealt with under
the petition scheme appended to this section.

Further details on how petitions are dealt with can also be found in Section
12 Procedural Standing Orders.

Information

Full details of Citizen's rights of access to information and the County
Council's decision making arrangements are given in Section 13 of the
Constitution — Access to Information Procedure rules.

In Summary, Citizens have the right to:

e Attend meetings of the County Council and its Committees and Panels
except where it is likely that confidential or exempt information will be
disclosed during the meeting. Where this is the case, the meeting will be
held in private and any reports containing confidential or exempt
information will not be published;

e Attend meetings of the Cabinet when key decisions are being
considered;

e Find out what key decisions will be taken by the Cabinet and when from
the Council’s Notice of Intended Key Decisions;

e See reports and background papers, and any records of decisions made
by the Council and the Cabinet; and

¢ Inspect the Council’s accounts and make their views known to the
external auditor.

Page 39


http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgEPetitionListDisplay.aspx?bcr=1
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgEPetitionListDisplay.aspx?bcr=1

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

6.1

e Record, report or film formal meetings (including by the use of electronic
methods such as Twitter, Blogs and Facebook).

Complaints
Citizens have the right to complain to the Council under its complaints

scheme which can be found on the Council's website at
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/consultationandfeedba

ck/complimentscommentscomplaints.

If Citizens are not satisfied by the response from the Council after using the
Council’'s own complaints scheme they can then complain to the Local
Government and Social Care Ombudsman, details of how to complain to the
Ombudsman are given as part of Council's complaints scheme.

Citizens can also complain about the conduct of elected Members of the
County Council to the County Council’s Monitoring Officer who will
investigate and determine if a breach of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct
has occurred. Further details about the Councillors' Code of Conduct can be
found in Section 3 — Members of the County Council.

Overview and Scrutiny

Citizens have the right to participate in the Council's Overview and Scrutiny
arrangements by suggesting topics for the Overview and Scrutiny
Committees to review. More details can be found at
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/decisionmakingcouncil/
scrutinygetinvolved/.

Citizens also have the right to attend meetings of the Council's overview and
Scrutiny Committees and members of the public may be invited to participate
in scrutiny activity at appropriate points.

Citizens’ responsibilities
Citizens must not be violent, abusing or threatening to councillors or officers

and must not wilfully harm things owned by the County Council, councillors
or officers.

Page 40


http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/consultationandfeedback/complimentscommentscomplaints
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/consultationandfeedback/complimentscommentscomplaints
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/consultationandfeedback/complimentscommentscomplaints
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/decisionmakingcouncil/scrutinygetinvolved/
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/decisionmakingcouncil/scrutinygetinvolved/

Petitions

Staffordshire County Council wants to hear from people who live, work and study
in the area about the things that matter to them. We welcome petitions which are
one way for people to let us know their concerns. We will acknowledge all
petitions sent or presented to the council within 10 working days of receipt. This
acknowledgement will set out what we plan to do in response to the petition. We
will treat something as a petition if it says it is a petition, or if it seems to us that it
is meant to be one.

You can send paper petitions to:

Mike Bradbury, Democracy Manager
Member and Democratic Services
Staffordshire County Council
Wedgwood Building

Tipping Street

Stafford

ST16 2DH

Or create, sign and submit a petition online by following this link
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/doitonline/haveyoursay/ .

Or contact Mike Bradbury, Democracy Manager — Scrutiny and Governance, on
01785 276133 to make arrangements to hand a petition in.

Petitions can also be presented to a meeting of the full council. These meetings
take place at least six times a year, dates and times can be found here
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=124 . If you
would like to present your petition to the council, or would like your councillor or
someone else to present it on your behalf, please contact Mike Bradbury,
Democracy Manager, on 01785 276133 at least 10 working days before the
meeting and an officer will talk you through the process.

What are the guidelines for submitting a petition?
Petitions submitted to the council must include:

e aclear and concise statement covering the subject of the petition - it
should state what action the petitioners wish the council to take (or stop
taking)

¢ the name and address and signature of any person supporting the
petition.

Petitions should be accompanied by contact details, including an address, for the
petition organiser. This is the person we will contact to explain what we will do in

Page 41


http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/doitonline/haveyoursay/
http://moderngov.staffordshire.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=124

response to the petition. If the petition does not identify a petition organiser, we
will contact signatories to the petition to agree who should act as the petition
organiser.

Please tell us if the petition has been sent to anyone else as well as the County
Council.

Petitions which we consider to be vexatious, abusive or otherwise inappropriate
are not acceptable.

What will the council do when it receives my petition?

An acknowledgement will be sent to the petition organiser within 10 working days
of receiving the petition. It will explain what we plan to do in response to the
petition and if and when they can expect to hear from us again. The
acknowledgement will also be published on our website. The contact details of
the petition organiser will not be published.

If we can do what your petition asks for, the acknowledgement may confirm our
response that we will do this and the petition will be closed.

If the subject raised by the petition needs more investigation, we will tell you the
steps we plan to take to do this, how you may be involved and when you can
expect a final response.

If the petition has enough signatures to trigger a council debate (5,000
signatures), or a senior officer giving evidence (2,500 signatures), then the
acknowledgment will confirm this and tell you when and where the meeting will
take place and how you may be involved.

If the petition applies to a planning application, is a statutory petition (for example
requesting a referendum on having an elected mayor), or on a matter where
there is already an existing right of appeal, other procedures apply. Further
information on all these procedures and how you can express your views is
available on the council’s website.

In the period immediately before an election or referendum we may need to deal
with your petition differently — if this is the case we will explain the reasons and
discuss the revised timescale which will apply.

If a petition does not follow the guidelines, the council may decide not to do
anything further with it. In this case, we will write to you to explain the reasons.

So that people know what we are doing in response to the petitions we receive

the details of all the petitions submitted to us will be published on our website,
together with the acknowledgement and notification of the response, except in

Page 42



cases where this would be inappropriate. Whenever possible we will also publish
all correspondence relating to the petition (all personal details will be removed).

How will the council respond to petitions?

Our response to a petition will depend on what a petition asks for and how many
people have signed it, but the steps we take in response may include one or
more of the following:

e considering the petition at a council meeting

holding an inquiry into the matter

undertaking research into the matter

holding a public meeting

holding a consultation

holding a meeting with petitioners

referring the petition for consideration by the council’s overview and
scrutiny committee*

e calling a referendum

leading to writing to the petition organiser:

setting out our views about the request in the petition

explaining that we will take the action requested in the petition
explaining why we will not take the action requested in the petition
explaining what action we will take, if any, in response to the subject
raised by the petition

e giving advice about how the subject raised by the petition might be
pursued.

*QOverview and scrutiny committees are committees of councillors who are
responsible for scrutinising the work of the council and some partners — in other
words, the overview and scrutiny committee has the power to hold the council’s
decision makers and some partners to account. You can find out more about our
decision making and scrutiny arrangements by following this link
http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/decisionmakingcouncil/ .

The council will consider all the specific actions it could take on the subject raised
by a petition. If your petition is about something over which the council has no
direct control (for example the local railway or hospital) we will consider making
representations on behalf of the community to the relevant body. The council
works with a large number of local partners and where possible will work with
these partners to respond to your petition. If we are not able to do this for any
reason, then we will explain this to you. You can find more information on the
services for which the council is responsible on our website.

Page 43


http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/yourcouncil/decisionmakingcouncil/

If your petition is about something that a different council is responsible for we
will give consideration to what the best method is for responding to it. This might
consist of simply forwarding the petition to the other council, but could involve
other steps. In any event, we will always notify you of the action we have taken.

Full council debates

If a petition contains more than 5,000 signatures it will be debated by the full
council (unless it is a petition asking for a senior council officer to give evidence
at a public meeting). This means that the subject raised in the petition will be
discussed at a meeting which all County Councillors can attend. The council will
usually consider the petition at its next meeting, although on some occasions this
may not be possible and consideration will then take place at the following
meeting. We will let you know about the specific arrangements for the debate
and how you may be involved. The council may decide the response to the
petition at this meeting or suggest what other steps should be taken. Where the
council executive has to make the final decision on the response to the petition,
the council may make recommendations to inform this decision.

The petition organiser will be notified of the council’s resolutions.

This notification will also be published on our website.

Officer evidence

Your petition may ask for a senior council officer to give evidence at a public
meeting about something for which the officer is responsible as part of their job.
For example, your petition may ask a senior council officer to explain progress on
an issue, or to explain the advice given to elected members to enable them to
make a particular decision.

If your petition contains at least 2,500 signatures, the relevant senior officer will
give evidence at a public meeting of the relevant overview and scrutiny
committee. A list of the senior staff that can be called to give evidence can be
found here [see annex]. You should be aware that the overview and scrutiny
committee may decide that it would be more appropriate for another officer to
give evidence instead of any officer named in the petition — for instance if the
named officer has changed jobs. The committee may also decide to call the
relevant councillor to attend the meeting. Committee members will ask the
guestions at this meeting, but we will let you know the specific arrangements for
the meeting and how you may be involved. The overview and scrutiny
committee will make a report on its findings which may include recommendations
for action.

The petition organiser will be sent a copy of the overview and scrutiny
committee’s report. The report will also be published on our website.

Page 44



E-petitions

The council welcomes e-petitions which are created and submitted through our
website [http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/doitonline/haveyoursay/]. E-petitions
must follow the same guidelines as paper petitions.

The petition organiser will need to provide us with their name, postal address and
email address. You will also need to decide how long you would like your
petition to be open for signatures. Most petitions run for six months, but you can
choose a shorter or longer timeframe, up to a maximum of 12 months.

When you create an e-petition, it may take five working days before it is
published online. This is because we have to check that the content of your
petition is suitable before it is made available for signature. If we feel we cannot
publish your petition for some reason, we will contact you within this time to
explain. You will be able to change and resubmit your petition if you wish. If you
do not do this within 10 working days, a summary of the petition and the reason
why it has not been accepted will be published under the ‘rejected petitions’
section of the website.

When an e-petition has closed for signature, it will automatically be submitted
unless you would like to present it to a meeting of the council. If you would like to
present your e-petition please contact Mike Bradbury, Democracy Manager, on
01785 276133 in advance of the closure date. In the same way as a paper
petition, you will receive an acknowledgement within 10 working days.

A petition acknowledgement and response will be emailed to everyone who has
signed the e-petition and elected to receive this information. The
acknowledgment and response will also be published on this website. We will
not send you anything which is not relevant to the e-petition you have signed,
unless you choose to receive other emails from us.

How do | ‘sign’ an e-petition?

You can see all the e-petitions currently available for signature on the council’s
website.

When you sign an e-petition you will be asked to provide your name, your
postcode and a valid email address. When you have submitted this information
you will be sent an email to the email address you have provided. This email will
include a link which you must click on in order to confirm the email address is
valid. Once this step is complete your ‘signature’ will be added to the petition.
People visiting the e-petition will be able to see your name in the list of those who
have signed it but your contact details will not be visible.

Page 45


http://www.staffordshire.gov.uk/doitonline/haveyoursay/

What can | do if | feel my petition has not been dealt with
properly?

If you feel that we have not dealt with your petition properly, the petition organiser
has the right to request a review of the steps that the council has taken in
response to your petition. This will be undertaken by the Council’s Corporate
Review Committee, unless it has previously been involved in considering the
petition in which case it will nominate another of the council’s overview and
scrutiny committees to undertake the review. It is helpful to everyone if the
petition organiser gives a short explanation of the reasons why the steps the
council has taken are not considered to be adequate.

The committee will usually consider your request at its next meeting, although on
some occasions this may not be possible and consideration will take place at the
following meeting. Should the committee determine that we have not dealt with
your petition adequately, it may use any of its powers to deal with the matter.
These powers include making recommendations to the council executive and
arranging for the matter to be considered at a meeting of the full council.

Once the appeal has been considered the petition organiser will be informed of
the results within five working days. The results of the review will also be
published on our website.

Annex

List of the senior staff that can be called to give evidence
Chief Executive

Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills

Director for Families and Communities

Director of Corporate Services
Director of Health and Care

Page 46



11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

SECTION 5
THE FULL COUNCIL
Purpose of Full Council

The Full Council is the County Council's primary democratic body. All 62
County Councillors meet together to debate matters of importance and fulfil
the functions set out for full Council.

Functions of Full Council

The Full Council's primary responsibility is to adopt and approve the County
Council's Budget and Policy Framework. The way in which changes to the
Budget and Policy Framework are made is governed by the Budget and Policy
Framework Rules appended to this section.

The County Council's policy framework sets out the major policies governing
the Council's work and includes the following plans and strategies:-
e Annual Library Plan
Best Value Performance Plan
Children and Young People’s Plan
Corporate Strategy
Sustainable Community Strategy
Crime and Disorder Reduction Strategy
Development Plan documents contained in the Minerals and
Waste Development Framework
e Youth Justice Plan
e Local Transport Plan

The Full Council is also responsible for setting the County Council's budget
on an annual basis. This includes the allocation of financial resources to
different services, proposed contingency funds, setting the level of Council
Tax and decisions relating to the control of the Council’s borrowing
requirement, the control of its capital expenditure and the setting of virement
limits.

The Full Council will also exercise the following functions, some of which
may be delegated to Officers of the Authority under the Scheme of
Delegation in Section 11 of this Constitution (These functions are indicated
by an asterisk):

e Adopting and changing the Constitution on the recommendation of the
Audit and Standards Committee.

e Subject to the urgency procedure contained in the Access to Information
Rules in Section 13 of this Constitution, making decisions about any
matter in the discharge of an executive function which is covered by the
policy framework or the budget where the decision maker is minded to
make it in a manner which would not be in line with the policy framework
or the budget.

e Appointing and removing the Leader of the Council.

e Setting the maximum number of Support Members.

Page 47



3.1

3.2

Agreeing and/or amending the terms of reference for Committees and
Panels, deciding on their composition and making appointments to them.
Appointing representatives to outside bodies unless the appointment is
an executive function or has been delegated by the Council.

Adopting a Members Allowances Scheme on the recommendation of the
Independent Panel.

Changing the name of the area.

Conferring the title of honorary alderman.

Confirming the appointment of, and dismissing, the Head of Paid
Service.

Making, amending, revoking, re-enacting or adopting byelaws and
promoting or opposing the making of local or personal Bills in Parliament.
All local choice functions set out in the table below which the Council
decides should be undertaken by itself rather than the Cabinet (if any).
Adopting or changing the Members’ Code of Conduct.

The approval, for the purposes of public consultation in accordance with
Regulation 10 or 22 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Plans) (England) Regulations 1999, of draft proposals associated with
the preparation of alterations to, or the replacement of, a development
plan.

Agreeing to confer additional functions on a joint committee agreed by
the Planning Committee for the purposes of Part 2 to the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to be a local planning authority.
Agreeing to request the dissolution of a joint committee agreed to by the
Planning Committee for the purposes of Part 2 to the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 to be a local planning authority.
Appointing the Returning Officer for Local Government Elections.*
Dividing electoral divisions into polling districts at Local Government
elections.

Submitting proposals to the Secretary of State for an order under section
11 (pilot schemes for local elections in England and Wales) of the
Representation of the People Act 2000.

To make standing orders.

To appoint staff, and to determine the terms and conditions on which
they hold office (including procedures for their dismissal).*

To make arrangements for proper administration of financial affairs etc.
To designate an officer as the head of the authority's paid service, and to
provide staff, etc.

To designate an officer as the monitoring officer, and to provide staff, etc.
All other matters which, by law, must be reserved to the Council.

Local Choice Functions

The County Council is responsible for determining responsibility for Matters
which are termed ‘local choice’ functions under Section 13 of the Local
Government Act 2000.

A list of those Local Choice Matters which Full Council has determined
should be the responsibility of the Cabinet can be found in Section 6 — The
Cabinet.

Page 48



3.3

4.1

4.2

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1.6

5.1.7

The Full Council is responsible for the following Local Choice Functions:

e The making of arrangements under section 20 (questions on police
matters at Council meetings) of the Police Act 1996 for enabling
guestions to be put on the discharge of the functions of the Staffordshire
Police Authority.

e The Full Council has also determined that the Audit and Standards
Committee will be responsible for the determination of an appeal against
a decision made by or on behalf of the authority.

Council Meetings

There are three types of County Council meeting:
e The Annual meeting;
e Ordinary meetings;
e Extraordinary meetings.

Meetings of the County Council will be conducted in accordance with the
Procedural Standing Orders in Section 12 of this Constitution.

Chairing County Council Meetings.

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the County Council will be elected by
the Council at its annual meeting and The Chairman of the County Council,
and in his absence, the Vice-Chairman, will have the following roles and
functions:

To uphold and promote the purposes of the Constitution, and to interpret the
Constitution when necessary.

To plan for and to preside over meetings of the Council, ensuring that its
business is carried out efficiently, having regard to the rights of councillors
and the interests of the community.

To ensure that the Council meeting is a forum for the debate of matters of
concern to the local community and a place at which members who are not
on the Cabinet are able to hold the Cabinet and Committee and Panel
Chairmen to account.

To promote public involvement in the Council’s activities.

To attend or to be represented at such civic and ceremonial functions as he
may determine.

To determine any matter referred to him under the urgency provisions in the
Access to Information Rules in Section 2 or the Budget and Policy
Framework Rules appended to this section.

To respond to any consultations where consultation with the Chairman of the
County Council is required under this Constitution.

Page 49






11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Appendix BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK PROCEDURE RULES
The framework for Cabinet decisions

The Council will be responsible for the adoption of its budget and policy framework
as set out in Section 5 of the Constitution. Once a budget or a policy referred to in
the policy framework is in place, it will be the responsibility of the Cabinet to
implement it.

Process for developing the framework

After appropriate consultation with stakeholders, the Cabinet will draw up initial
proposals in relation to any plan, strategy or budget which forms part of the Council’s
budget and policy framework. Once drawn up the Proper Officer will serve copies of
them on the Chairman of the relevant Select Committee(s) together with dates when
the Cabinet will consider them further, which shall allow a reasonable period for the
Select Committee(s) to consider the proposals.

The relevant Select Committee will consider whether to respond to the Cabinet’s
initial proposals and whether any further consultation is appropriate. If so the
Committee will conduct such consultation, and will reflect any representations made
to it, in its response to the Cabinet prior to the decision being made by the Cabinet.

The Cabinet will finalise its proposals for the Council to consider having taken into
account the comments from the relevant Select Committee. The report to Council will
show the Cabinet’s response to those comments.

The Council will consider the proposals of the Cabinet and if the Council has no
objection to those proposals it may adopt them.

If the Council has any objections to a draft plan or strategy proposed by the Cabinet,
then before the Council:-

(@) amends the draft plan or strategy; or

(b)  approves, for the purpose of its submission to the Secretary of State or any
Minister of the Crown for his approval, any plan or strategy (whether or not in
the form of a draft) of which any part is required to be so submitted; or

(c) adopts (with or without modification) the plan or strategy,

it shall inform the Leader of the Council of those objections and shall give the Leader
of the Council instructions requiring the Cabinet to reconsider, in the light of those
objections, the draft submitted to it.

Where the Council gives instructions in accordance with paragraph 2.5 it shall specify
a period of at least five working days, beginning on the day after the date on which
the Leader of the Council receives the Council's instructions in writing on behalf of
the Cabinet, within which the Cabinet may:-

Page 51



2.7

2.8

29

(@) submit a revision of the draft plan or strategy as amended by them (the
“revised draft plan or strategy"), with the Cabinet's reasons for any
amendments made to the draft plan or strategy, to the Council for the
Council's consideration: and/or

(b)  inform the Council of any disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the
Council's objections and the Cabinet's reasons for any such disagreement.

When the period specified by the Council under paragraph 2.6 has expired, the
Council shall, when:-

(@) amending the draft plan or strategy or, if there is one, the revised draft plan or
strategy; or

(b)  approving, for the purpose of its submission to the Secretary of State or any
Minister of the Crown for his approval, any plan or strategy (whether or not in
the form of a draft or revised draft) of which any part is required to be so
submitted: or

(c) adopting (without or without modification) the plan or strategy,

take into account any amendments made to the draft plan or strategy that are
included in any revised draft plan or strategy, the Cabinet's reasons for those
amendments, any disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the Council's
objections and the Cabinet's reasons for that disagreement, which in each case have
been notified to the Council within that period.

Subject to paragraph 2.12, where, before 8 February in any financial year, the
Cabinet submits to the Council for its consideration in relation to the following
financial year:-

(@) estimates of the amounts to be aggregated in making a calculation (whether
originally or by way of substitute) in accordance with any of sections 43 to 49
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992;

(b)  estimates of other amounts to be used for the purposes of such a calculation;
(c) estimates of such a calculation; or

(d)  amounts required to be stated in a precept under Chapter IV of Part | of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992,

and following consideration of those estimates or amounts the Council has any
objections to them, it shall take the action set out in paragraph 2.9.

Before the Council makes a calculation (whether originally or by way of substitute) in
accordance with any of the sections referred to in paragraph 2.8 (a) or issues a
precept under Chapter IV of Part | of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, it shall
inform the Leader of the Council of any objections which it has to the Cabinet's
estimates or amounts and shall give to the Leader of the Council instructions

Page 52



2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

3.1

requiring the Cabinet to reconsider, in the light of those objections, those estimates
and amounts in accordance with the Council's requirements.

Where the Council gives instructions in accordance with paragraph 2.9, it shall
specify a period of at least five working days beginning on the day after the date on
which the Leader of the Council receives the Council's instructions in writing on
behalf of the Cabinet within which the Cabinet may:-

(@) submit a revision of the estimates or amounts as amended by the Cabinet
("revised estimates or amounts”), which have been reconsidered in
accordance with the Council's requirements, with the Cabinet's reasons for
any amendments made to the estimates or amounts, to the Council for the
Council's consideration; and/or

(b)  inform the Council of any disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the
Council's objections and the Cabinet's reasons for any such disagreement.

When the period specified by the Council under paragraph 2.10 has expired, the
Council shall, when making calculations (whether originally or by way of substitute) in
accordance with the sections referred to in paragraph 2.8(a) or issuing a precept
under Chapter IV of Part 1 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, take into
account any amendments to the estimate or amounts that are included in any revised
estimates or amounts; the Cabinet's reasons for those amendments; any
disagreement that the Cabinet has with any of the Council's objections; and the
Council's reasons for that disagreement which in each case have been notified to the
Council within that period.

Paragraphs 6 to 9 shall not apply in relation to :-

(@) calculations or substitute calculations which an authority is required to make in
accordance with section 52J or 52U of the Local Government Finance Act
1992; and

(b)  amounts stated in a precept issued to give effect to calculations or substitute
calculations made in accordance with section 52J or 52 U of that Act.

In approving the policy and budgetary framework the Council will also specify the
extent of virement within the budget and degree of in-year changes to the policy
framework which may be undertaken by the Cabinet in accordance with paragraphs
5 and 6 of these Rules (virement and in-year adjustments). Any other changes to the
budget and policy framework are reserved to the Council.

Decisions outside the Budget or Policy framework

Subject to the provisions of paragraph 5 below (virement), the Cabinet, and any
officers discharging Cabinet functions, may only take decisions which are in line with
the budget and policy framework. If any of these bodies or persons wishes to make a
decision which is not in line with the policy framework or the budget approved by the
full Council, then that decision may only be taken by the Council, subject to
paragraph 4 below.

Page 53



3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

5.3

If the Cabinet, or any officer discharging Cabinet functions, want to make such a
decision, they shall take advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the Director of
Finance and Resources as to whether the decision they want to make is not in line
the policy framework or the budget. If the advice of either of those officers is that the
decision would not be in line with the existing budget and/or policy framework, then
the decision must be referred by that officer to the Cabinet and by the Cabinet to the
Council for decision, unless the decision is a matter of urgency, in which case the
provisions in paragraph 4 below (urgent decisions outside the budget and policy
framework) shall apply.

Urgent decisions outside the Budget or Policy framework

The Cabinet, or the Chief Executive or a Chief Officer may take a decision which is
not in line with the Council’s policy framework or the budget approved by full Council
if the decision is a matter of urgency. However, the decision may only be taken:

(@) ifitis not practical to convene a quorate meeting of the full Council; and

(b) if the Chairman of the relevant Select Committee agrees that the decision is a
matter of urgency.

The reasons why it is not practical to convene a quorate meeting of full Council and
the consent of the Chairman of the relevant Select Committee to the decision being
taken as a matter of urgency must be noted on the record of the decision. In the
absence of the Chairman of the relevant Select Committee the consent of the
Chairman of the Council or in the absence of both, the Vice-Chairman will be
sufficient.

Following the decision, the Cabinet will provide a full report to the next available
Council meeting explaining the decision, the reasons for it and why the decision was
treated as a matter of urgency.

Virement

Steps taken by the Cabinet, or any Sub-Committee or Portfolio Holder or officer,
discharging executive functions to implement Council policy shall not exceed the
allocated budget for the service in question.

The Financial Regulations in Section 14 of this Constitution set out the rules for the
operation of virement across the budgets allocated for particular functions of the
Council.

Virement in excess of the limits from time to time prescribed for the purposes of the
Financial Regulations shall require the approval of the full Council.

Page 54



6.1

6.2

7.1

7.2

7.3

In-year changes to the Budget and Policy Framework

The responsibility for agreeing the budget and policy framework lies with the Council,
and decisions by the Cabinet, or any Sub-Committee or Portfolio Holder or any
officer, discharging executive functions must be in line with it.

No changes to any policy and strategy which make up the policy framework may be
made by any officer and no such changes may be made by the Cabinet except those
changes:-

(@ which will result in the closure or discontinuance of a service or part of service
to meet a budgetary constraint;

(b)  which are necessary to ensure compliance with the law, ministerial direction,
guidance issued by Government or a Government Agency, or guidance issued
by the Audit Commission or the Council’s external Auditor.

(c) in relation to the policy framework, in respect of a policy which would normally
be agreed annually by the Council following consultation, but where the
existing policy document is silent on the matter under consideration.

(d)  which relate to policy in relation to schools, where the majority of school
governing bodies agree with the proposed change.

(e)  for which the budget or policy specifically provides for in-year change.
Call-in of decisions outside the Budget or Policy Framework

Where a Select Committee is of the opinion that an Cabinet decision is, or if made
would be, not in line with the policy framework or the Council’s budget, then it shall
seek advice in the form of a report from the Monitoring Officer and/or Director of
Finance and Resources.

In respect of functions which are the responsibility of the Cabinet, the Monitoring
Officer’s report and/or Director of Finance and Resources’s report shall submitted to
the Cabinet and copied to every member of the Council. Regardless of whether the
decision is delegated or not, the Cabinet must meet to decide what action to take in
respect of the Monitoring Officer’s report and to prepare a report to Council in the
event that the Monitoring Officer or the Director of Finance and Resources conclude
that the decision was not in line with the policy framework and/or budget, and to the
relevant Select Committee if the Monitoring Officer or the Director of Finance and
Resources conclude that the decision was in line with the policy framework and/or
budget.

If the decision has yet to be made, or has been made but not yet implemented, and
the advice from the Monitoring Officer and/or the Director of Finance and Resources
is that the decision is or would be not in line with the policy framework or the budget,
the Select Committee may refer the matter to the Council. In such cases, no further
action will be taken in respect of the decision or its implementation until the Council
has met and considered the matter. The Council shall meet within 20 working days of

Page 55



the request by the Select Committee. At the meeting it will receive a report of the
decision or proposals and the advice of the Monitoring Officer and/or the Director of
Finance and Resources. The Council may either:

(@) endorse a decision or proposal of the Cabinet as falling within the existing
budget and policy framework. In this case no further action is required, save
that the decision of the Council be minuted and circulated to all councillors in
the normal way; or

(b)  amend the Council’s Financial Regulations or policy concerned to encompass
the decision or proposal of the body or individual responsible for that Cabinet
function and agree to the decision with immediate effect. In this case, no
further action is required save that the decision of the Council be minuted and
circulated to all councillors in the normal way; or

(c) where the Council accepts that the decision or proposal is contrary to the
policy framework or contrary to or not wholly in accordance with the budget,
and does not amend the existing framework to accommodate it, require the
Cabinet to reconsider the matter in accordance with the advice of either the
Monitoring Officer or the Director of Finance and Resources.

Page 56



SECTION 6

THE CABINET

1. Executive Arrangements

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The role of the Council’s Executive is to lead the preparation of the Council’s
policies and budget, to lead the community planning process and the attainment of
best value, to implement the Council’s policies and budget, to take in-year
decisions on such and to be the focus for Local Strategic Partnerships.

The County Council’s Executive comprises the Leader of the Council and a
Cabinet of other Members appointed by the Leader. The Leader of the Council
and the Cabinet are collectively described as “The Cabinet”. The Cabinet is not a
Committee of the County Council.

Leader of the Council

The County Council shall appoint a Member of the Council as the Leader of the
Council at its annual meeting in the year of elections for County Councillors.

The Leader will serve for a four year term unless:-

o They resign from the office;

o They are suspended from being a Councillor under Part Ill of the Local
Government Act 2000 (although they may resume office at the end of the
period of suspension)

o They are no longer a Councillor; or

o They are removed from office by resolution of the Council.

If the serving Leader ceases to be Leader for one of the above reasons, the
Council will elect a new Leader who will serve until the next election for County
Councillors.

The Cabinet

The Leader shall specify the number of Members in addition to himself who
comprise the Cabinet being not less than two and not more than nine. The
Cabinet shall not be a Committee of the Council.

The Leader of the Council shall appoint Members of the Council to serve on the
Cabinet as Cabinet Members. Only Councillors may be appointed to the Cabinet
and there may be no Deputies or Substitutes for Cabinet Members.

The Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the County Council may not be Members of
the Cabinet and Cabinet Members may not be Members of any of the Scrutiny
Committees.

Cabinet Members will serve for a four year term of office unless:-

o They resign from office;

o They are suspended from being councillors under Part Il of the Local
Government Act 2000 (although they may resume office at the end of the
period of suspension);

Page 57



3.5

4.1

4.2

4.3

5.1

5.2

6.1

o They are no longer a Councillor;
o They are removed from office by the Leader of the Council; or
o The Leader of the Council resigns or is removed from office.

The Leader of the Council shall allocate to each Cabinet Member responsibilities
relating to the executive functions of the Council as he shall decide. The Director
of Corporate Services shall maintain a list of these responsibilities and include it in
the Constitution.

The Deputy Leader

The Leader of the Council shall designate one Cabinet Member as Deputy Leader
who may, in any circumstances that Leader of the Council is unable to act,
exercise the powers, duties and responsibilities of the Leader of the Council under
the Constitution.

If the Leader of the Council ceases to hold the office, the Deputy Leader will act as
Leader until a new Leader is appointed by the Council. Under these
circumstances, the provisions of Paragraph 3.4 above shall not apply.

The Deputy Leader will hold office until the end of the Leader’s term of office
unless removed from the office by the Leader or they cease to be a Cabinet
Member under Paragraphs 3.4 above.

The Lead Member for Children’s Services (LMCS)

The Leader shall designate one Cabinet Member as the LMCS with responsibility
for children’s services.

The LMCS shall

o have political responsibility for the strong, strategic leadership and
effectiveness of children’s services.

o have regard to the General Principles of the United Nations Convention on
the Rights of the Child.

o perform a key role in defining the local vision and setting political priorities for
children’s services within the broader political context of the Council.

o support and challenge the Director of Children’s Services and relevant
members of their senior team, other Directors and local partners to ensure
that the needs of all children and young people, including the most
disadvantaged and vulnerable, and their families and carers, are addressed.

. Ensure that children and young people’s views are taken into account in the
development and delivery of local services which improve their outcomes and
well-being.

Cabinet Support Members
Cabinet Support Members with a specific portfolio
There will be one Cabinet Support Members with the portfolio as follows:-
e Adult Safeguarding
Page 58



6.2

6.3

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

All Party Member Group (APMG) Cabinet Support Members

There will be four APMG Cabinet Support Members who will chair and lead the All
Party Member Groups.

Community Cabinet Support Members

There will be eight Community Cabinet Support Members to support the Cabinet
Member for Communities, provide leadership on matters relating to a particular
district and co-ordinate the activity of the elected members in that district.

Role of the Cabinet

The Council’s Cabinet will operate as the strategic policy and decision making
body of the County Council carrying out such of the County Council’s functions
which are not the responsibility of any other part of the Council and which are
allocated to the Cabinet by the Leader of the Council.

In support of those roles the Cabinet will consider and manage the exercise of all
the functions and powers of the Council which are delegated to the Cabinet by the
Leader and:-

o After consulting with the appropriate Scrutiny Committee, consider and make
recommendations to the full Council on any matters which it is the
responsibility of the full Council to determine, (other than on matters which
are by law not the responsibility of the Leader and Cabinet);

o Determine an annual programme for the preparation of reports and
recommendations to the Council on such matters;

o Consult as the Cabinet thinks fit on any matter.

o Conduct reviews in respect of any service or function within the scope of the
role of the Leader and/or Cabinet, subject to consultation with the appropriate
Scrutiny Committee and to the participation of members of the appropriate
Scrutiny Committee in individual reviews; and receive reports on reviews
undertaken.

o Refer such matters as the Cabinet may decide to any Scrutiny Committee for
consideration and/or report and/or recommendation.

o Consider and respond to reports and recommendations from any Scrutiny
Committee.

The Cabinet shall appoint Members to serve on the various bodies upon which the
County Council is entitled to appoint representatives subject to any relevant
statutory provision relating to political balance. The Cabinet may also remove an
appointee from the office if and when required.

No member of the Council other than the Cabinet Member in question shall be
appointed to or serve on any Body advising or being consulted by that Portfolio
Holder.

The Cabinet will as appropriate or necessary in the circumstances seek the advice
of the Chief Executive, the Director of Corporate Services the relevant Chief
Officer and/or the Director of Finance and Resources on any matter and shall have
regard to any advice so given.

Page 59



8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

Cabinet Decisions and Cabinet Member Decisions

The Cabinet may collectively take any decision on any matter delegated to the
Cabinet by the Leader or has been referred to the Cabinet by a Cabinet Member,
the Chief Executive or any Chief Officer or is one which the Cabinet have
specifically reserved for decision to them.

The Cabinet have no power to take decisions on matters reserved to the full
Council or matters which may not by law be determined by the Cabinet or change
the delegation of any Local choice Function.

The Leader may establish one or more Cabinet Sub-Committees on a task and
finish basis. They shall appoint the Chairman and members of the Sub-Committee
from amongst the Members of the Cabinet and may delegate powers to it. The
details of any Sub-Committee and the powers delegated to it shall be recorded in
this Constitution.

The Leader of the Council may also delegate specific decision making powers to a
specified Cabinet Member. All such allocations are to be recorded by the Director
of Corporate Services in the Constitution on the written notification by the Leader
of the Council.

Cabinet Members may only take decisions within the approved budget and may
not have delegated power to take key decisions, decisions that are by law not the
responsibility of the Council’s Executive or decisions that are reserved by the
Leader to the Cabinet as a whole. No decision shall be made by a Cabinet
Member who has a conflict of interest or where such action would be contrary to a
Code of Conduct in any other way or would be unlawful.

The exercise of delegated powers by a Cabinet Member is always subject to the
County Council’'s Budget and Policy Framework rules, the Call-in provisions in
Section 7 (Select Committees), the Access to Information Rules (Section 13), and
Financial Regulations (Section 14).

Delegated powers can only be exercised once the Cabinet Member has
considered a written report from the Chief Officer concerned. Where appropriate,
such written report shall include confirmation that the Chief Officer has received
and considered advice from the relevant Statutory Officer.

The decision of the Portfolio Holder must be in writing, signed by him/her and by
the Chief Officer concerned and include a record of the reasons for the decision,
details of any alternative options considered and rejected at the time by the
Portfolio Holder, a record of any conflict of interest declared by any other Cabinet
Member who is consulted in relation to the decision and a note of any dispensation
granted by the Standards Committee in respect of any such declared conflict of
interest. A copy of such decision must be given within 24 hours to the Director of
Corporate Services.

The Leader may delegate to a Chief Officer any power or responsibility or function

which it is in law the responsibility of the Cabinet to discharge and will maintain a
scheme of such delegations in Section 11 of the Constitution.

Page 60



8.10

8.11

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

9.5

Chief Officers may in turn delegate any responsibilities that have been allocated to
them to an officer in accordance with a scheme to be approved by the Leader.
The Leader will keep such schemes under review and may from time to time add
to, vary or delete any such delegations.

Even where executive functions have been delegated, that fact does not prevent
the discharge of delegated functions by the person or body who delegated those
functions.

Cabinet Meetings

Cabinet decisions which are taken by the Cabinet as a whole will be taken at
meetings convened in accordance with the Access to Information Rules in Section
13 of the Constitution. The Cabinet will normally meet at monthly intervals and at
other times to be agreed by the Leader of the Council.

The quorum for a meeting of the Cabinet shall be three including the Leader of the
Council, or if he is absent, the Deputy Leader. If the Leader of the Council is
present he will preside and if he is absent the Deputy Leader will preside.

At each meeting of the Cabinet the following business will be conducted:-

o Confirmation of the minutes of the last meeting.

o Declarations of interest, if any.

o Any matters referred to the Cabinet (whether by a Scrutiny Committee or by
the Council) for reconsideration by the Cabinet in accordance with the
provisions contained in the Scrutiny Procedure Rules or the Budget and
Policy Framework Procedure Rules set out in this Constitution.

o Consideration of reports from Scrutiny Committees; and

o Any matters set out in the agenda for the meeting, and which shall indicate
those which are key decisions and those which are not in accordance with
the Access to Information Procedure rules set out in Section 13 of this
Constitution.

The Cabinet may require any Cabinet Member or the Leader of the Council or
Chief Officer to report to the Cabinet on any matter which the Cabinet specify and
which is within its or his/her purview.

Any Cabinet Member may request the Leader of the Council to arrange for an item
to be placed on the agenda of the next available meeting of the Cabinet for
consideration.

The Monitoring Officer and/or the Finance Officer may require the Proper Officer to
include an item for consideration on the agenda of a Cabinet meeting. If there is
no meeting of the Cabinet soon enough to deal with the issue in question, then the
person(s) entitled to include an item on the agenda may also require that a
meeting be convened at which the matter will be considered.

The Director of Corporate Services will be the Proper Officer for matters relating to
the membership and meetings of the Cabinet, including summoning meetings,
circulating the Agenda and papers for such meetings, and recording every
decision taken by the Cabinet itself. Such record shall include the reasons for such
decision and any alternative options considered and rejected.

Page 61



10.

10.1

10.2

11.

111

11.2

11.3

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

12.6

Conflicts of Interest

Where the Leader and/or a Cabinet Member has a conflict of interest this should
be dealt with as set out in the Council’s Code of Conduct for Members.

If the exercise of an executive function has been delegated to an officer and a
conflict of interest arises, then the function will be exercised in the first instance by
the person or body by whom the delegation was made and otherwise as set out in
the Officers’ Code of Conduct in Section 11 of this Constitution.

Rights of attendance at Meetings of the Cabinet

Any person entitled to do so by the Access to Information Rules in Section 13 of
this Constitution may attend a Cabinet Meeting. A Councillor may attend a
Cabinet meeting in accordance with the ‘Local Member’ provisions in Section 12 of
this Constitution.

The Cabinet or the Leader of the Council may invite any individual to attend a
meeting of the Cabinet to assist or advise the Cabinet but such individual shall not
be a member of the Cabinet and shall not have any voting rights.

Up to two representatives nominated by the Corporate Review Committee shall be
entitled to attend and speak (but not to vote) at a meeting of the Cabinet when it
considers any reference back of a called-in decision.

Consultation

Reports to the Cabinet from any Cabinet Member or an officer on proposals
relating to the budget and policy framework must contain details of consultation
with stakeholders and relevant Scrutiny Committee, and the outcome of that
consultation.

Reports about other matters will set out the details and outcome of consultation as
appropriate.

Each Cabinet Member may from time to time make arrangements for consultation
with persons or bodies who are not members of the Council about any matter
within the portfolio of that Cabinet Member. These arrangements shall not lead to
any delegated powers being vested in any person or body so consulted or asked
to advise.

The Leader may also establish (and disestablish) Boards comprising Members
and officers to oversee specific projects, functions or services or to undertake
reviews.

Boards do not have the power to take decisions on behalf of the Council and are
informal structures not subject to the provisions regarding Access to Meetings and
Information (except the additional rights of Access for Members).

A list of boards currently established, along with their terms of reference and

Membership shall be maintained by the Director of Corporate Services and
included in the Constitution.

Page 62



Delegations to all Cabinet Members

1. Subject to Paragraph 2 below, to take a decision on any matter which is the responsibility of
Cabinet under the Council’s constitution and which falls within the Cabinet Member’s portfolio (see
table below for details of Cabinet Members’ portfolio responsibilities) and which is not
delegated to an officer(s) in the Council’s Scheme of Delegation to Officers.

2. This delegation does not extend to decisions of the following nature:

Key Decisions i.e. decisions which are significant either in financial terms or in their effects
on communities living or working in an area comprising two or more electoral divisions in
the county area.

Decisions affecting more than one portfolio.

Decisions which the portfolio holder considers more appropriate for a full Cabinet Decision.
Decisions which are outside the Council’s Budget or Policy Framework (if the Cabinet
Member is in any doubt as to whether a decision is outside the Council’s Budget or Policy
Framework they should seek the advice of the Director of Corporate Services.

Decisions in relation to which the Cabinet Members has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or
the taking of which by the Cabinet Member would otherwise involve a breach of the
Council’s Code of Conduct for Members.

Decisions which are unlawful or would lead to the Council acting unlawfully.

3. For the avoidance of doubt this delegation replaces and supersedes any previous delegations to
Cabinet Members where there is any inconsistency between the two.

Page 63



9 abed

Leader of the Council

Role Purpose

Prosperity,
Wellbeing and
Safer
Communities

To be responsible for the Council’s overall vision, strategy and budget setting and monitoring.

To provide clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council to help advance all of
the County Council’s key outcomes.

To create effective internal and external relationships with key organisations both within Staffordshire,
nationally and internationally.

To win new resources for Staffordshire to deliver the vision of a connected Staffordshire, where
everyone has the opportunity to prosper, be healthy and happy

To be accountable for the development and delivery of the county council strategies and to ensure that
those strategies are able to meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

To appoint and hold Cabinet colleagues to account as they ensure accountability within their
commissioning/service areas including that financial and operational performance in those areas meets
the requirements of the Council’s Strategic Plan, Business Plan and the Medium Term Financial
Strategy (MTFS).

To hold Cabinet colleagues accountable for the delivery of the appropriate key projects/programmes
including the delivery on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business
Plan and the MTFS.

To Chair meetings of the Cabinet

To represent, or appoint a representative of, the County Council on a range of outside bodies both
within and outside of Staffordshire.

To be the County Council’s representative on the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP)

In consultation with the Chief Executive, to appoint (and/or remove) officers and members (as
appropriate) to act as Directors on Boards of companies of which the County Council is a member or is
to be a member.

Key External
Relationships

Public sector bodies locally, nationally and internationally as appropriate including the LEP,
Staffordshire Strategic Partnership, County Council’s Network, Midlands Engine, Midlands Connects
Board, Constellation Partnership, criminal justice partners, HM Treasury and the Department for
Communities & Local Government

e Business locally, nationally and internationally as appropriate
Key Internal e Cabinet e Senior Leadership Team
Relationships e Shadow Cabinet Appropriate Scrutiny Committees
Strategic e Development and implementation of Overall Property Strategy

Responsibilities

Council’s Strategic Plan
To lead on Public Sector reform

District and Town deals (strategy)
Strategic HR

Operational

Comms




G9 abed

Responsibilities

Project
Responsibilities

Overseeing all key projects through Cabinet Members




99 abed

Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Health, Care and Wellbeing

Role Purpose

Wellbeing

To deputise for the Leader in his absence and to assist him at other times as agreed with the Leader.

To provide clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council to help advance all of the
County Council’s key outcomes.

To assist in creating effective internal and external relationships with the organisations listed below to
help advance the outcomes.

To provide clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council to help advance the
County Council’s key outcome of developing a Staffordshire where everyone can benefit from improved
Health & Wellbeing.

To be accountable for the development and delivery of the strategies listed below and to ensure that
those strategies are able to meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

Working with the Cabinet Support Member for Adult Safeguarding, to be accountable for the
commissioning/service areas listed below and to ensure that financial and operational performance in
those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan and the MTFS.

To be accountable for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed below and to ensure that these
are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan and
the MTFS.

To be the co-chair of the Staffordshire Health & Wellbeing Board and ensure that the views of the County
Council are influential in the work of the Board.

In order to effectively discharge the Wellbeing agenda, this Cabinet Member will lead and work with the Cabinet
Support Member for Adult Safeguarding

Key External e Department of Health o Staffordshire Health and Wellbeing Board
Relationships e NHS England Members
e Public Health England e Health Commissioners & Providers across
e National Health Improvement (NHS(1)) Staffordshire
e Monitor e Care Providers
e Care Quality Commission, and Principle Social e District & Borough Councils in particular re:
Worker housing
Key Internal e Director of Health and Care e Cabinet Support Member for Adult Safeguarding
Relationships e Deputy Chief Executive and Director of e Appropriate Shadow Cabinet member(s)
Families and Communities e Appropriate scrutiny committees
Strategic e Development and implementation of Health & Wellbeing strategy
Responsibilities ¢ Development of the Sustainability and Transformation Plan for Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent
e Development of strategy to foster closer integration with NHS commissioners.
o Development and implementation of Public Health strategies (including active Staffordshire)




/9 abed

All age Mental Health Strategy

Development and implementation of all age disability strategy

Long Term Care Strategy

Contributing to the development of Building Resilient Families and Communities and Families First
strategies in partnership with the Cabinet member for Children and Young People

Adult Safeguarding Board (delegated to Cabinet support member)

Operational
Responsibilities

Delivery of Better Care Fund and integrated commissioning

Health visiting (jointly with Cabinet member for Children and Young People)
School nursing (jointly with Cabinet member for Children and Young People)
Drugs & Alcohol services

Sexual health services

Health improvement services and activities

Reablement and rehabilitation services

Housing related support

Adult social care assessment and case management (SSOTP, LD and MH)
Occupational therapy

Brokerage

Long term care

Project
Responsibilities

Health and Care Transformation Programme
Sustainable Transformation Plan




89 abed

Cabinet Support Member for Adult Safeguarding

Role Purpose

Wellbeing —
Operational
Oversight and
Performance

To support the Cabinet Lead Member for Health and Adult Care to provide clear political leadership both
within and outside the County Council to help advance the County Council’s key outcome of developing a
Staffordshire where everyone can benefit from improved Health & Wellbeing.

To create effective internal and external relationships with the organisations listed below to help advance
the outcome.

To be accountable to the Cabinet Lead Member for the development and delivery of the functions and
services listed below and to ensure that those functions and services contribute effectively in meeting the
outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

To be accountable to the Cabinet Lead Member for the commissioning/service areas listed below and to
ensure that financial and operational performance in those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic
Plan, Business Plan and the MTFS.

To be accountable to the Cabinet Lead Member for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed
below and to ensure that these are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the
Strategic Plan, Business Plan and the MTFS.

The Cabinet Support Member for Adult Safeguarding will assist the Health, Care and Wellbeing Cabinet
Member, to effectively discharge the Wellbeing agenda. The Cabinet Support Member has no decision-making

powers.
Key External e Safeguarding Adults Board e Providers of Domiciliary and Residential Care
Relationships e Healthwatch Staffordshire across Staffordshire

e Care Quality Commission local leads e Health Commissioners and Providers across

Staffordshire

Key Internal
Relationships

SCC Lead for Care Commissioning
SCC Quality Assurance team leader
Appropriate Shadow Cabinet member(s)
Appropriate Scrutiny Committees

Director of Health and Care

SCC Lead for Adult Social Care and
Safeguarding

SCC Safeguarding Lead

Adult Safeguarding Manager

Strategic
Responsibilities

Ensuring that arrangements within Staffordshire for adult safeguarding and quality assurance of long
term care providers are adequate

Operational
Responsibilities

Governance arrangements for safeguarding ¢ Arrangements to discharge the Council’s

adults through the Safeguarding Adults Board responsibilities under the Mental Health act in
Operational arrangements for safeguarding respect of the function of Approved Mental
adults and the associated activity and outcomes Health Professionals

Arrangements to discharge the Council’s e Arrangements for quality assurance of long term




69 abed

responsibilities under the Deprivation of Liberty
Safeguards

care providers, ongoing issues and how these
are being resolved

Project
Responsibilities

Health and Care Transformation Programme
Sustainable Transformation Plan




0/ abed

Cabinet Member for Economic Growth

Role Purpose

Prosperity

To provide clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council to help advance the
County Council’s key outcome of developing a Staffordshire where everyone can benefit from improved
Prosperity.

To create effective internal and external relationships with the organisations listed below to help advance
the outcome.

To be accountable for the development and delivery of the strategies listed below and to ensure that
those strategies are able to meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

To be accountable for the commissioning/service areas listed below and to ensure that financial and
operational performance in those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan and
the MTFS.

To be accountable for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed below and to ensure that these
are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan and
the MTFS.

To be the County Council’s representative on the Midlands Connect Steering Group

To be the County Council’s Principal Director to the Board of West Midlands Rail Limited (The Leader of
the Council to be the substitute Board member)

Key External e Stoke on Trent and Staffordshire Local e BT
Relationships Enterprise Partnership and other surrounding e Chambers of Commerce
LEPs and economic partnerships (e.g. Sector e Federation of Small Businesses
Groups, Combined Authorities etc.) e Businesses across Staffordshire
e Department for Business, Energy and Industrial e Stoke on Trent City Council
Strategy Department for Works and Pensions e District & Borough Councils
e Schools, colleges and universities
e National Careers Service
e HS2Ltd
Key Internal e Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills e Appropriate Shadow Cabinet member/s
Relationships e Cabinet Member for Learning and e Appropriate scrutiny committee/s
Employability
Strategic e Development and implementation of Council’s e HS2
Responsibilities Economic Development e West Midlands Rail devolution
e Tourism strategy e County Farms
e Strategic Planning e Development and implementation of the roll out
e Delivery of countryside review decisions and utilisation strategies for rural broadband.
Operational e Economic Development e Tourism
Responsibilities e Inward Investment e County Farms




T/ obed

Delivery of major infrastructure projects
(SWAR)

Cannock Chase AONB

Project
Responsibilities

Economic Growth




Z/) abed

Cabinet Member for Commercial Matters

Role Purpose

Prosperity

To provide clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council ensure that the County
Council’'s commercial arrangements and relationships deliver maximum benefit to Staffordshire and its
communities.

To create effective internal and external relationships with the organisations listed below to help advance
the outcome.

To be accountable for the development and delivery of the strategies listed below and to ensure that
those strategies are able to meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

To be accountable for the commissioning/service areas listed below and to ensure that financial and
operational performance in those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan and
the MTFS.

To ensure that the Council has effective contract management arrangements in place and to oversee the
performance and delivery by the Council’s major contractors

To develop Commercial Strategies to generate new income streams for the County Council

To be accountable for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed below and to ensure that these
are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan and
the MTFS.

To ensure the management of the Council’s property portfolio to generate the necessary capital receipts
and revenue returns to support the Council’s MTFS and that it contributes effectively to the delivery of the
Council’'s outcomes.

Key External e Department for Transport e Providers such as Veolia, Biffa FCC
Relationships e Highways Agency e Amey

e Environment Agency o Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Safer Roads

e HS2Ltd Partnership

e Network Rail e Penda (contractual)

e Bus operating companies e Entrust (contractual)

e Train operating companies e Veolia

e District Town & Parish Councils e Joint Waste Management Board

e Providers such as Veolia, Biffa, FCC
Key Internal e Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills e Appropriate Shadow Cabinet member/s
Relationships e Director of Finance and Resources e Appropriate scrutiny committee/s
Strategic e Highways e Nexxus
Responsibilities e Transport e Waste, sustainability (including carbon

e Procurement reduction) and rural strategies
Operational e Procurement e Delivery of Waste Management

Responsibilities




¢) abed

Project
Responsibilities

Commercialism




v/ obed

Cabinet Member for Highways and Transport

Role Purpose

Prosperity

To provide clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council to help advance the
County Council’s key outcome of developing a Staffordshire where everyone can benefit from improved
Prosperity.

To create effective internal and external relationships with the organisations listed below to help advance
the outcome.

To be accountable for the development and delivery of the strategies listed below and to ensure that
those strategies are able to meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

To be accountable for the commissioning/service areas listed below and to ensure that financial and
operational performance in those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan and
the MTFS.

To be accountable for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed below and to ensure that these
are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan and
the MTFS.

Key External e Department for Transport e Train operating companies
Relationships e Highways Agency e District, Town & Parish Councils

e Environment Agency e Amey

e Flood Alleviation Group e Staffordshire and Stoke on Trent Safer Roads

e HS2Ltd Partnership

e Network Rail e Bus operating companies
Key Internal e Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills e Appropriate Shadow Cabinet member/s
Relationships e Appropriate scrutiny committee/s
Strategic e Development and implementation of Council’'s Transport Strategies including working with Cabinet
Responsibilities Member for Economic Growth on HS2
Operational e All Highways & Transport operational issues, including Infrastructure+ partnership
Responsibilities
Project e Securing & Delivering Infrastructure e Transport

Responsibilities




G,) abed

Cabinet Member for Finance

Role Purpose

Prosperity,
Wellbeing and
Safer
Communities

Well Run
Council

To be accountable for the development and delivery of the strategies listed below and to ensure that
those strategies are able to meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

To be accountable for the commissioning/service areas listed below and to ensure that financial and
operational performance in those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan

and the MTFS.

To be accountable for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed below and to ensure that
these are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business

Plan and the MTFS.

To assist the Leader in holding Cabinet colleagues to account as they ensure accountability within their
commissioning/service areas in respect of financial performance, meeting the requirements of the
Strategic Plan, Business Plan and the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).

To assist the Leader in holding Cabinet colleagues accountable for the delivery of the appropriate key
projects/programmes including delivery on time and within budget to meet the requirements of the

Strategic Plan, Business Plan and the MTFS.

To lead the development of the Council’s approach to the Digital agenda

Key External
Relationships

District & Borough Councils [finance and
corporate matters]

HM Treasury, Department for Communities &
Local Government

Entrust (shareholder)
Penda (shareholder)

Key Internal Director of Corporate Services e Appropriate Shadow Cabinet member/s
Relationships Section 151 Officer e Appropriate scrutiny committee/s
Strategic Assist with the development and e Business Plan and MTFS
Responsibilities implementation of the Strategic Plan

Operational Strategy, Governance and Change (other than e Finance and Resources (other than
Responsibilities Comms) Procurement and HR)

Project Well-Run Council e Demand Management

Responsibilities

Digital




9/ abed

Cabinet Member for Communites

Role Purpose

Safer
Communities

To provide clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council to develop the
Council’'s approach to community empowerment through People Helping People help thereby
advancing the County Council’s key outcome of developing a Staffordshire where everyone can benefit
from improved Prosperity

To create effective internal and external relationships with the organisations listed below to help
advance the outcome.

To be accountable for the development and delivery of the strategies listed below and to ensure that
those strategies are able to meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

To be accountable for the commissioning/service areas listed below and to ensure that financial and
operational performance in those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan
and the MTFS.

To be accountable for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed below and to ensure that
these are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business
Plan and the MTFS.

To be the main Cabinet link between the County Council and the Safer Staffordshire Board

In order to effectively discharge the Safer Communities agenda, this Cabinet Member will work, as
appropriate, with the Cabinet Support Member who chairs the Community All Party Member Group and with
the eight Community Cabinet Support Members. These Cabinet Support Members have no decision making

powers.
Key External e Department for Environment, Food and Rural e Stoke on Trent City Council , District & Borough
Relationships Affairs Council [community and rural matters]
e Department for Culture, Media and Sport e Town & Parish Councils
¢ Natural England e Community Council for Staffordshire
e Rural special interest groups e Other voluntary sector organisations
e Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Archive e Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner (working
Service with the Cabinet Member for Children and
¢ Flood Alleviation Group Young People) ; Staffordshire Police; Fire &
e District and Town deals (People Helping Rescue Service; Probation and Courts’ Service
People element)
Key Internal e Director for Families and Communities e Appropriate shadow cabinet member/s
Relationships e Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills e Appropriate scrutiny committee/s
Strategic e Communities e Sports strategy
Responsibilities e Culture and heritage including libraries e Arts and Archives
e Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise e Community safety (working with the Cabinet




/] abed

contract

Member for Children and Young People)
Flooding

Operational
Responsibilities

Community leadership, engagement and
development

Community safety

Culture and Heritage including Libraries, Arts
and Museums

Country Parks

Trading Standards

Scientific Services

Energy and Climate Change

Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise
contracts

Project
Responsibilities

People Helping People




g/ abed

Cabinet Member for Children and Young People

Role Purpose

Safer
Communities

Prosperity

e To be the statutory Lead Member for Children and to have overall responsibility and oversight for all
matters relating to Children and Young People

e To provide clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council to help advance the
County Council’s key outcome of developing a Staffordshire where everyone can benefit from
improved Safety and to support the needs of children in relation to this and the Council’s other key
outcomes.

e To create effective internal and external relationships with the organisations listed below to help
advance the outcome.

e To be accountable for the development and delivery of the strategies listed below and to ensure that
those strategies are able to meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

e To be accountable for the commissioning/service areas listed below and to ensure that financial and
operational performance in those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan

and the MTFS.

e To be accountable for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed below and to ensure that
these are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business

Plan and the MTFS.

e To be the Council’s main representative on the Local Safeguarding Children Board, to chair the
Corporate Parenting Panel, to Chair of the Children’s Improvement Board, to represent the needs of
children on the Health & Wellbeing Board, and to be the principal lead on discussions between the
County Council and the Police & Crime Commissioner in respect of children’s safety

In order to effectively discharge the Safer Communities and Prosperity agenda, this Cabinet Member will work

with the Cabinet Member for Learning and Employability

Responsibilities

Children’s & Youth Strategies

Children with Physical Disabilities

Key External e Department for Education e Child care providers
Relationships e OfSTED e Voluntary sector organisations
e Safer Staffordshire Board e The Education Trust Board
Key Internal o Deputy Chief Executive and Director of Family e Appropriate Shadow Cabinet member/s
Relationships and Communities e Appropriate scrutiny committee/s
Strategic e Development and implementation of Council’s e Children with Learning Difficulties
[ ]
[ ]

e Education

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
[SEND]

Operational
Responsibilities

e All Children’s Services including Families First
e Safeguarding
e Looked After Children

Corporate Parenting
Children’s Centres
Statutory duties for Early Education and




6/ obed

Childcare, including sufficiency

Project
Responsibilities

Families and Children’s System

SEND Transformation




08 abed

Cabinet Member for Learning and Employability

Role Purpose

Safer
Communities

Prosperity

To support the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People in

Providing clear political leadership both within and outside the County Council to help advance the
County Council’s key outcome of developing a Staffordshire where everyone can benefit from
improved Learning & Skills in support of the Council’s key outcomes.

Creating effective internal and external relationships with the organisations listed below to help
advance the outcome.

Developing and Delivering the strategies listed below and ensuring that those strategies are able to
meet the outcomes required by the Council and Cabinet.

Being accountable for the commissioning/service areas listed below and to ensure that financial and
operational performance in those areas meets the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business Plan
and the MTFS.

Being accountable for the delivery of the key projects/programmes listed below and to ensure that
these are delivered on time and budget and meet the requirements of the Strategic Plan, Business
Plan and the MTFS.

Being the Council’s main representative on the Education Trust Board.

The Cabinet Member for Learning and Employability will work with the Cabinet Member for Children and
Young People to effectively discharge the Safer Communities/Prosperity agenda .

Key External
Relationships

Department for Education e Local enterprise Partnership and the
OfSTED Staffordshire Education Trust
National Careers Service Schools,

Private & Voluntary sector education providers
Entrust [attainment and improvement]
Regional Schools Commissioner

Further Education Colleges

Universities

Skills Funding Agency
Education Funding Agency
Department for Business Innovation and Skills

Key Internal
Relationships

Deputy Chief Executive & Director for Families
and Communities
Director for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills

Appropriate Shadow Cabinet member/s
Appropriate scrutiny committee/s

Strategic e Development and implementation of Council’'s Learning and Skills strategies

Responsibilities

Operational e All Learning related functions, including LEA e Statutory duties for the commissioning of
Responsibilities responsibilities careers guidance for Staffordshire’s young

Education & School Improvement people and ensuring 16-18 year olds get a
SEND place in education and training




T8 abed

Statutory duties for Adult and Community
Learning

Commissioning of Entrust.
Human Resources

Project
Responsibilities

Free Childcare Scheme

Work with the Cabinet Member for Children and
Young People with SEND Transformation




LOCAL CHOICE FUNCTIONS WHICH ARE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF CABINET

1. Any function under a local Act other than a function specified elsewhere in this Appendix.

2. The making of arrangements in relation to appeals against the exclusion of pupils from
maintained schools

3. The making of arrangements pursuant to Section 94(1), (1A) and (4) of the School
Standards and Framework Act 1998 (admission appeals)

4. The making of arrangements pursuant to Section 95(2) of the 1998 Act (Children to whom
Section 87 applies: appeals by governing bodies).

5. The making of appointments to the Joint Appointments Committee under paragraphs 2 to 4
(appointment of members by relevant Councils) of Schedule 2 (Police Authorities
established under Section 3) to the Police Act 1996

6. The conducting of best value reviews in accordance with the provisions of any order for the
time being having effect under Section 5 (best value reviews) of the Local Government Act
1999.

7. Any function relating to contaminated land.

8. The discharge of any function relating to the control of pollution or the management of air
quality.

9. The obtaining of information under section 330 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
as to interests of land.

10.The obtaining of particulars of persons interested in land under Section 16 of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976.

11.The making of agreements for the execution of highways works.
12.The appointment of any individual:-

a. to any office other than an office in which he is employed by the authority;
b. to any body other than —
i. the authority
ii. ajoint Committee of two or more authorities; or
c. to any Committee or Sub-Committee of such a body, and the revocation of any such
appointment.

13. The making of agreements with other Local Authorities for the placing of staff at the
disposal of those other Authorities.

14.Power and duties in respect of Local Development Documents which are not Development
Plan Documents.

Page 82



Page 83






Property Sub-Committee
Membership and Terms of Reference
Purpose:

1. To exercise full delegated executive powers to consider and make decisions on all
land and property transactions where the County Council has an interest and the
value of that transaction is between £200,000 and £2 million as defined in the
schedule of decision making authority appended to these Terms of Reference.

2. To advise the Cabinet on the contents of the property strategy for the use of land
and property in which the County Council has an interest, including Economic
Regeneration Sites, County Farms and Enterprise Centres

Meetings Arrangements

The Sub-Committee will be convened in accordance with the Access to Information
Rules and will meet at monthly intervals on dates published in advance in the County
Council’s calendar of meetings

The Director of Corporate Services, as Monitoring Officer, shall be the Proper Officer
for the purpose of administering the Sub-Committee

The provision for County Councillors to attend Cabinet meetings in accordance with
the ‘Local Member’ provisions in the Constitution will be extended to permit
attendance at Sub-Committee meetings.

Membership
The Sub- Committee will comprise:

The Leader of the Council

The Deputy Leader of the Council

Cabinet Member for Commercial

Cabinet Member for Economic Growth

Cabinet Member for Learning and Employability

Chairman

The Sub-Committee will be chaired by the Leader of the Council

Quorum

No business shall be considered or transacted unless either the Leader or Deputy
Leader of the Council are present. In circumstances where both the Leader and
Deputy Leader are unable to participate in discussions on an item (eg. due to non-

attendance or the need to declare an interest), that item will be referred to Cabinet
for determination.

Page 85



The meeting will be adjourned if, having been quorate at the start, the Leader and/or
Deputy Leader leave the meeting resulting in the meeting no longer being quorate
and a reconvened meeting will be arranged or the remaining business will be carried
over to the next scheduled meeting.

Any business which cannot wait until the reconvened or next meeting will be
forwarded to cabinet for consideration if a meeting of the cabinet is scheduled prior
to the reconvened or next scheduled Sub-Committee meeting.

Voting

Decisions will be made by majority vote. Where the votes cast are equal the
chairman shall have a second or, casting vote.

Sub-Committee Decisions

The Sub-Committee may consider items referred to it from other levels in the
decision making structure appended to these Terms of Reference and may also
refer to full Cabinet any issue within the Sub-Committees remit, on which it requires
a wider view.

The Proper Officer shall decide whether a matter should be submitted to the Sub-
Committee.

Any reports on which a member of the Sub-Committee has a conflict of interest shall
be referred to full Cabinet for consideration

Decisions made by the Sub-Committee shall relate to the responsibilities of the
Executive only and are subject to the County Council’s Budget and Policy
Framework Rules, Call-in provisions, Access to Information Rules and Financial
Regulations.

All decisions shall be taken on the basis of detailed written reports from the Cabinet
Member and Lead Officer for Property Matters, such reports shall include relevant
advice from other County Council Officers including, where appropriate, the Head of
Scrutiny.

All decisions of the Sub-Committee shall be formally recorded and submitted to the
next meeting of the Cabinet for information.

Page 86



/g abed

Appendix 1

SCHEDULE OF DECISION MAKING LEVELS FOR PROPERTY MATTERS (December 2017)

TRANSACTION

CABINET

PROPERTY SUB CTTEE

OFFICERS

Director of
Finance and
Resources

(see note 1
below)

Acquisitions

All acquisitions at market value of
£2m or above.

Final Terms and any variation in
Terms for ALL transactions to be
approved by relevant Portfolio
Holder

All acquisitions at market value of
between £200,000 and £2m

Final Terms and any variation in Terms
for ALL transactions to be approved by
relevant Portfolio Holder

All acquisitions at
market value of
up to £200,000,
and all Terms for
those
transactions

Disposals

1 Freehold —at best
consideration

2 Freehold —at
undervalue

All disposals for best consideration

at a market value of £2m or above.

Final Terms and any variation in
Terms for ALL transactions to be
approved by relevant Portfolio
Holder

Any disposal of a freehold at an
undervalue, where the undervalue

All disposals for best consideration, at
a market value between £200,000 and
below £2m

Final Terms and any variation in Terms
for ALL transactions to be approved by
relevant Portfolio Holder

Any disposal of a freehold at an
undervalue, where the undervalue

All disposals for
best
consideration, at
a market value of
below £200,000,
and all Terms for
those
transactions




88 abed

TRANSACTION CABINET PROPERTY SUB CTTEE OFFICERS
Director of
Finance and
Resources
(see note 1
below)
value is £2M or more value is £2m or less
NB: For an undervalue of £2m or
more approval by the Secretary of
State is required under Section 123
of the Local Government Act 1972
and General Disposal Consent 2003
Final Terms and any variation in Terms
Final Terms and any variation in for ALL transactions to be approved by
Terms for ALL transactions to be relevant Portfolio Holder
approved by relevant Portfolio
Holder
3 Leasehold at best All leasehold disposals for best
consideration(Granting | All leasehold disposals for best consideration at a total rent over the
or surrendering consideration at a total rent over the | term or a premium plus the total rent of | All leasehold

(including farm
business tenancies)

4 Leasehold at
undervalue

term or a premium plus the total rent
of £2m or above.

Final Terms and any variation in
Terms, including Right of Renewal,
for all transactions to be approved
by the relevant Portfolio Holder

Any disposal of a leasehold interest

between £200,000 and below £2m

Final Terms and any variation in
Terms, including Right of Renewal, for
all transactions to be approved by the
relevant Portfolio Holder

Any disposal of a leasehold interest in

disposals for best
consideration at a
total rent over the
term or a
premium plus the
total rent of below
£200,000, and all
Terms for those
transactions,




68 abed

TRANSACTION

CABINET

PROPERTY SUB CTTEE

OFFICERS

Director of
Finance and
Resources

(see note 1
below)

in land for a term of 7 years or more
where the undervalue value is £2M
or more.

NB: For an undervalue of £2m or
more approval by the Secretary of
State is required under Section 123
of the Local Government Act 1972
and General Disposal Consent
2003. However, disposals by way of
a short tenancy (which is granted
for seven years or less, or the
assignment of a term, which has not
more than seven years to run) do
not need consent.

Final Terms and any variation in
Terms, including Right of Renewal,
for all transactions to be approved
by the relevant Portfolio Holder

Any disposal of a leasehold interest
in land for a term of 7 years or more
where the undervalue value is £2M

land for a term of 7 years or more
where the undervalue value is £2m or
less

Final Terms and any variation in
Terms, including Right of Renewal, for
all transactions to be approved by the
relevant Portfolio Holder

including Right of
Renewal




06 abed

TRANSACTION

CABINET

PROPERTY SUB CTTEE

OFFICERS

Director of
Finance and
Resources

(see note 1
below)

or more.

NB: For an undervalue of £2m or
more approval by the Secretary of
State is required under Section 123
of the Local Government Act 1972
and General Disposal Consent
2003. However, disposals by way of
a short tenancy (which is granted
for seven years or less, or the
assignment of a term, which has not
more than seven years to run) do
not need consent.

Final Terms and any variation in
Terms, including Right of Renewal,
for all transactions to be approved
by the relevant Portfolio Holder

Easements an
Wayleaves

Any Easement or Wayleave where
the total premium, consideration
and/or rent over the term is £2m or
more

Any Easement or Wayleave where the

total premium, consideration and/or
rent over the term is between
£200,000 and below £2m

Any Easement or
Wayleave where
the total
premium,
consideration




T6 obed

TRANSACTION

CABINET

PROPERTY SUB CTTEE

OFFICERS

Director of
Finance and
Resources

(see note 1
below)

and/or rent over
the term is below

£200,000
Charges —to be Where land is disposed of with Where land is disposed of with
granted to SCC over payment of a consideration in payment of the consideration in
land disposed of with instalments in the future with a total | instalments in the future with a total
payments by value of £2m or more value of below £2m
instalments
Leases(where SCCis | Any lease where the total rent over | Any lease where the total rent over the | Any lease

the Tenant) - Taking or
surrendering

the term or a premium plus the total
rent is £2m or more

term or a premium plus the total rent is
between £200,000 and below £2m

entered into
where the total
rent over the term
or a premium
plus the total rent
is below
£200,000

Licences (and
tenancies at will) —
Taking or granting

Any licence where the total licence
fee over the licence period is £2m or
more

Any licence where the total licence fee
over the licence period is between
£200,000 and below £2m

Any licence
where the total
licence fee over
the licence period
is below
£200,000.

Appropriations of
Land

All Appropriations as authorised
under section 122 of the Local




26 abed

TRANSACTION

CABINET PROPERTY SUB CTTEE OFFICERS

Director of
Finance and
Resources

(see note 1
below)

Government Act 1972 (or any
subsequent re-enactment thereof)
including land for planning purposes
as defined in section 246(i) of the
Town and Country Planning Act
1990 (or any subsequent re-
enactment thereof)

Other Transactions

Any disposal of land by Staffordshire County Council which contains overage or clawback should
be reported to Property Sub-Committee but escalated to Cabinet if required.

Notices to Terminate a
Lease

Rent Review

)

)To be covered by general delegations to Director of Finance and Resources (Head of Property)
and Director of Economy Infrastructure and Skills

)
)

Authorised Guarantee
Agreements (where
SCCis the tenant)

Any departure from the policy of SCC of not entering into Authorised Guarantee Agreements in
the capacity of Tenant — to be reported to Property Sub-Committee for initial consideration.

Dilapidations- Settling
of claims where SCC
has been the tenant

Any claim totalling £2m or above Any claim totalling between £200,000 | Any claim
and below£2m totalling below
£200,000

Acquisition of land by
private treaty in
connection with a
Compulsory Purchase

Acquisitions made in furtherance of a compulsory purchase order to be delegated to the relevant
Director in accordance with the original cabinet authority for the compulsory purchase order




£6 abed

TRANSACTION CABINET PROPERTY SUB CTTEE OFFICERS
Director of
Finance and
Resources
(see note 1
below)

Order

Development - All [but escalated to Cabinet if -

Agreements required]

Joint Use Agreements | Covered in main Scheme of Delegation to SLT members

Removal of Any removal where the paymentis | Any removal where the total payment | Any removal

Restrictive Covenants | £2m or more Is between £200,000 and below £2m where the total
payment is below
£200,000

Exclusivity/Lock out - All [but escalated to Cabinet if -

Agreements required]

Memorandum of Covered in main Scheme of Delegation to SLT members

Understanding

Pre-emptions and Where the total value of the property | Where the total value of the property is | Where the total

Options is £2m or above between £200,000 and below £2m value of the
property is below
£200,000

Notes

1 Officers are reminded that before exercising any of the delegated powers below consideration should be given to whether there
are any wider issues which should be taken into account which make it more appropriate for the decision to be made at member
level.

To assist the following criteria is provided as a guide (although not exhaustive):



76 abed

Officer Decision

Uncontroversial

Covered by the sub scheme of delegation

In accordance with agreed policy and budget provision

Related to current/existing service provision

Member Level Decision

Controversial

Direct impact on ‘Customers’

Politically Sensitive

Not covered by policy or budget provision

Related to new service provision/innovation

2. All decisions can be referred to a higher tier in the decision making structure




TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR BOARDS (To be Completed)

Strategic Property Board
Innovation and Efficiency Board
Service Review Board
W2R Board
BSF Project Board
Procurement Board

Page 95






THE SHADOW CABINET
Composition

The Leader of the Major Minority Group may choose to form a Shadow Cabinet by
his/her nomination from amongst the members of the Council. The Leader of the
Major Minority Group shall notify the Council and the Chief Executive of the names
of the members nominated to form a Shadow Cabinet and of any changes in the
membership of the Shadow Cabinet which may occur from time to time.

Role

The Shadow Cabinet will have collective responsibility for providing an effective
challenge to the controlling Executive (Cabinet) and for contributing constructively to
the achievement of the County Council’s corporate and service objectives and
priorities. These responsibilities should be undertaken in a positive manner,
maintaining respect at all times.

Number of members

The Shadow Cabinet shall comprise of the Leader of the Opposition, Shadow
Deputy Leader and no more than three of the Shadow Cabinet Members.

Functions

(a) Effectively to call to account or challenge the Majority Group on the County
Council at meetings of the County Council, Committees, Panels and on other
occasions as appropriate.

(b) To meet regularly, and ensure good communications with, other members to
inform the effective performance of the Shadow Cabinet’s role.

(c) To maintain effective relationships with the Cabinet and their Support Members,
the Corporate Directors and other relevant senior officers, and to meet them, as
required, to ensure that members of the Shadow Cabinet are sufficiently and
effectively briefed on service and relevant corporate areas and any other relevant
issues pertaining to the County Council.

(d) To assist in ensuring effective arrangements for overview and scrutiny.
(e) To ensure effective contact with community representatives and other local

stakeholders, as appropriate, and to represent their views in the performance of the
Shadow Cabinet’s role.

Page 97






11

1.2

1.3

2.1

SECTION 7

SELECT COMMITTEES

General Role of Select Committees

Select Committees are appointed as the County Council’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committees under section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 (and retained in
the Localism Act 2011) to review, and scrutinise the Council and its partners in
delivering the Council’s Vision and priorities and to monitor performance against
relevant plans and strategies.

To undertake this role each Select Committee will:

Assist and advise on the development of new policy or reviewing current policy;
Review and/or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with
the discharge of the Council’s or relevant partners functions;

Make reports and/or recommendations to the full Council, the Cabinet and/or
relevant partners in connection with the discharge of any functions;

Consider any matter affecting the area or its inhabitants including any matters
raised by a Councillor Call for Action;

Exercise the right to call-in, for reconsideration, decisions made but not yet
implemented by the Cabinet/ Cabinet Member; and

Respond to direct requests from Council or the Cabinet when appropriate.

By law, neither a Select Committee nor any Sub-Committee of a Select Committee
has any power to take any decisions on behalf of the Council and therefore there
are no delegations to them.

Specific functions

A Select Committee may within the scope of its allocated terms of reference:-

Assist the Council and the Cabinet in the development of its budget and policy
framework by in-depth analysis of policy issues;

Conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of policy
issues and possible options;

Consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community
participation in the development of policy options;

Question members of the Cabinet and/or Committees and Directors about their
views on issues and proposals affecting the County Council’s area; or about
their decisions and performance, whether generally in comparison with service
plans and targets over a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions,
initiatives or projects;

Liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether national,
regional or local, to ensure that the interests of local people are enhanced by
collaborative working;

Review and scrutinise the decisions made by, and performance of, the Cabinet
and/or Committees and Directors both in relation to individual decisions and
over time;

Review and scrutinise the decisions made by, and performance of, relevant
partner organisations (as defined in legislation) in the area;

Review the performance of relevant external organisations which impact on the
County Council’s functions or services and to submit reports thereon to the

Page 99



Council subject to such reports being first submitted to the Cabinet and the
appropriate Portfolio Holder and the external organisation in question for
comment;

e Review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area and
invite reports from them by requesting them to address the Select Committee
and local people about their activities and performance;

e Question and gather evidence from any person (with their consent);

e Make recommendations to the Cabinet, appropriate Committees, Council or
Relevant Partner Organisation as appropriate arising from the outcome of the
scrutiny process;

e Scrutinise policies strategies procedures and performance in respect of any
function which is the responsibility of the County Council,

3. Terms of Reference of Select Committees

3.1 The Council currently has four Select Committees, which have the following
terms of reference:-

3.2 The Corporate Review Committee is the Council’s Principal Scrutiny
Committee. It is responsible for leading on the overall management and co-
ordination of Select Committee work programmes as well as:

e Holding the Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council to account for their
leadership and performance.

e Scrutiny of the Council’s overall performance and approach to managing
performance and Strategic Corporate Planning

e Scrutiny of the Council’'s ongoing programme of improvement and
transformation.

e Scrutiny of the Local Enterprise Partnership

e Dealing with any Executive decisions that have been called in.

e Scrutiny of the Council’s support services including Finance, ICT, Human
Resources, Organisational Development, Legal and Member Services

e Building community capacity

3.2.1  Corporate Review will also establish an MTFS Working Group on an annual
basis. The Working Group will be responsible for the scrutiny of the
development of the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy, Annual
Budget and Council Tax setting process.

3.3 The Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee is responsible for scrutiny of
matters relating to the planning, provision and operation of health services in the
Authority's area, including public health, in accordance with regulations made
under the Health and Social Care Act 2001 and subsequent guidance including
the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health
Scrutiny) Regulations 2013. In accordance with these Regulations the County
Council has agreed for these regulations to be discharged through the
designated Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee has the power to make reports and

recommendations to NHS bodies conferred by the Health and Social Care Act
2001.

Page 100



3.3.1

3.4

3.5

4.1

4.2

The Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee may, within the scope of its
allocated roles and responsibilities, respond independently to health related
consultations from Government and external agencies.

The Committee will take the lead in scrutinising the work of the Health and
Wellbeing Board and developing a working relationship to enable this to be
undertaken effectively and constructively.

Appropriate members of the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee shall
comprise the County Council’s representation at any Joint Committee formed
under Regulation 30 of the Local Authority (Public Health, Health and Well Being
Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013; such Joint Committees being
constituted to comment on substantial reconfiguration proposals by a local NHS
body or service provider where those proposals would need to be consulted
upon with other local authority health scrutiny bodies in addition to the County
Council (see constitution section 10 re Joint Arrangements).

The Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee is responsible for scrutiny of
achievement against the Council’s strategic ambitions for promoting
prosperity and economic growth. The committee is also responsible for the
scrutiny of highways infrastructure and connectivity.

In addition the committee will be responsible for priorities around education,
learning and skills. As such the statutory education co-optees will sit on this
committee.

The Safe and Strong Communities Select Committee is responsible for
scrutiny of safeguarding vulnerable children and adults and community
safety. In particular it will include priorities around:

e Safeguarding children

e Safeguarding vulnerable adults

e The Council’s responsibilities regarding reducing crime and the fear of
crime and wider Community Safety priorities (referring matters as
appropriate to the Police and Crime Panel where responsibility sits with
the Police and Crime Commissioner).

There will be occasions when the committee will undertake joint working with the
Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee especially in regard to safeguarding
issues and the Corporate Parenting Panel in respect of safeguarding children.

Membership of Select Committee

All Councillors, except members of the Cabinet, may be members of a Select
Committee.

The County Council Members of the Select Committees will be appointed, in
accordance with the relevant political balance provisions, at the Annual meeting
of the County Council as follows:-

e Corporate Review Committee (13 Members)
e Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee (13 Members + 8 District and
Borough Members)

Page 101



5.1

5.2

5.3

5.3.1

5.4

5.5

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

e Prosperous, Staffordshire Select Committee (10 Members)
e Safe and Strong Communities Select Committee (10 Members)

Co-optees

The Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee will include in its membership
the following co-optees who shall have voting rights when the Committee
considers education matters:

e At least one Church of England diocese representative;

¢ One Roman Catholic diocese representative; and

e Three parent governor representatives.

If the Prosperous Staffordshire Select Committee deals with non-education
matters, the co-optees shall not vote on those other matters, though they may
stay in the meeting and speak.

The Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee shall have 8 co-opted members (1
per District /Borough Council, each having full voting rights).

Each District/Borough Council shall be entitled to nominate a substitute member
for their co-opted representative on the Healthy Staffordshire Select Committee;
such substitute member to have full voting rights.

In its capacity as the Council’s designated crime and disorder Committee, the
Safe and Strong Staffordshire Select Committee may co-opt additional members
who, unless the Committee decides otherwise, shall not be entitled to vote.

Such a co-opted member can only be a person who is an employee, officer or
non-Executive member of a responsible authority or a co-operating body or a co-
operating person.

The other Select Committees do not have any statutory arrangements for co-
optees, but may appoint non-voting co-optees at any time to assist them in the
completion of t